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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries as a Group is a leading
semiconductor company specializing in the design, development and sales of integrated
circuits products and system solutions that enable a wide range of display and touch
applications for smartphones, tablets, TVs/monitors, notebooks and other smart devices,
including wearables, healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well as industrial
appliances, etc.
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Provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display system
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B E

2018 2017

USS$ million US$ million

BEET BEETL

Revenue 4 & 5 98.1 825
Gross profit EF 28.2 29.3
Gross margin (%) £ F) & (%) 28.7 35.6
Net loss BiEFE (13.8) (10.3)
Loss per share (US cent) A% & 18 (1) (0.55) (0.41)
Book-to-hill ratio AIERER X 1.0 1.1
Total assets BEE 107.0 116.2
Shareholders’ funds P B 25 79.0 91.8
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Revenue increased by about 19% to US$98.1 million

HEBE FTARN19%ZEBIBEET

Gross profit was US$28.2 million, decreased by about 3.9% from last year

EMNRW2BEEXT  LEFRLH39%

Gross margin was 28.7%, down 6.9 percentage points

EFETHKEIMEE D E287%

Net loss was US$13.8 million
ERFEAIBBEEET

Loss per share was 0.55 US cents (4.26 HK cents)
B E1E B0553EMl(4.2678 1)

Book-to-bill ratio was 1.0

AEHERERIO

The Board of Directors resolved not to propose any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT.
TERE

2018 marked a year of both progress and challenges for Solomon Systech.

The Group has made good progress in bolstering its technological capabilities and
R&D talent, and also in driving new product development; all part of tactical measures
initiated since 2017. The strategy of establishing Solomon Systech (China) Limited
(or the Nanjing Technology Center) in Nanjing Jiangbei New District as the Group's
business center in China has also been proven effective in facilitating rapport building
with customers and subsequently, contributing to revenue growth.

In 2018, the Group achieved year-on-year increases in total sales and shipments
by around 19% and 37% to approximately US$98.1 million and 295.8 million units
respectively.

The key challenge for the Group has been to improve its financial performance
to enhance shareholder value. In 2018, the Group recorded a net loss of US$13.8
million, mainly due to specific provisions made for slow moving inventories, reduced
net financial income and high amortization charges on IP and related investments.
Nonetheless, the Group’s net cash position together with financial assets at FVTPL
have remained healthy at around USD22.2 million and its total net assets amounted to
approximately USD79.0 million as at 31 December 2018.

Committed to Increasing Shareholder Value

All Board members have devoted considerable time throughout 2018 in reviewing
strategies with the management team in light of rapidly changing market conditions and
to chart the course for a better tomorrow.

The key focus for the Group in the year ahead will be on increasing shareholder value.
This will involve tapping strong growth application markets and generating new revenue
streams to drive revenue growth; optimizing operating margins, and exercising effective
inventory management to increase inventory turnover rate.

The Group will continue to regularly review its development plans and cash position
to ensure the best capital structure is realized and that a good balance between the
interests of shareholders and its business needs is achieved.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT tontines
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Prospects

Venturing into 2019, the industry anticipates a year of both challenges and opportunities
ahead. The global economy is full of uncertainties, and market conditions are becoming
increasingly competitive. However, underpinned by our market-leading new products,
expanded product portfolio and strategic geographical footprint, we are well positioned
to capture emerging growth opportunities. Both the Board and management are
committed to moving expeditiously to deliver on our plans and on Solomon Systech'’s
potential to enhance shareholder value.

On behalf of my fellow Board members, | wish to thank our valued shareholders,
customers and business partners for their continued trust and unwavering support.
Appreciation must also be extended to each and every one of our employees for their
hard work and dedication throughout the year.

4 Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S MESSAGE
17T IR #8585

Persevere to Achieve

Perseverance is the key to achieving any goal.

In 2018, the Group has persevered and achieved good progress in establishing the
building blocks for a better tomorrow. These blocks will be crucial in our journey to
achieve the ultimate goal of increasing shareholder value and returning to profitability.

Innovating and Building a Stronger Product Portfolio

During 2018, the Group has enhanced its technological capacity to achieve
advancements and innovations, and thereby broaden its product portfolio.

The Group has developed the world’s first-ever PMOLED TDDI IC, of which its
inventiveness and strong potential has been well recognized in the form of key industry
awards and customer commendations. Other innovations included a touch controller IC
for foldable AMOLED panels, an AMEDP IC that can drive the largest electronic shelf
labels in the industry; and a point-to-point display driver IC for the high-end UHD TV and
8K TV.

Strengthening of Solomon Systech (China) Limited

Solomon Systech (China) Limited (“Solomon Systech China”) is strategically situated
in Nanjing and serves as the Group’s business and technology center in China. During
2018, the Group has been actively recruiting talent to meet growth expectations.
Solomon Systech China has proven effective in driving business growth. Our share of
business with Panda-FPD, a key customer for large display driver ICs, has increased
significantly year-on-year; contributing to the Group's revenue growth.

Reinforcing Customer Base and Revenue Streams

Apart from Panda-FPD in Nanjing, the Group has managed to reach out to important
customers in Chengdu and Xianyang for its large display driver ICs. Our bistable display
driver ICs have achieved design wins for electronic shelf labels for use in renowned
retail chain stores, while the brand new PMOLED TDDI IC is expected to start mass
production during 2019. Our mobile touch controller ICs have also achieved design
wins with leading phone makers and flexible AMOLED module manufacturers. These
accomplishments have greatly strengthened the Group's customer base and revenue
streams.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S MESSAGE ortues
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Persevere to Overcome Challenges and Achieve Growth
The Group was able to achieve growth in revenue and shipments in 2018, buoyed mainly
by the strong performance of the bistable display driver IC and large panel display driver
IC. Though net loss has increased, this was mainly due to specific provisions made for
slow moving inventories, high amortization charges on IP and related investments, and
decreased net finance income due to less favorable investment environment.

Looking at 2019, despite uncertain prospects for the global economy, which in turn
holds the potential for dampening consumer confidence and adversely affecting the
consumer electronics and semiconductor industry, we see some bright spots for growth
for the Group. In particular, the electronic shelf labels market has been bolstered by the
trend towards retail automation, while the smart devices market has been capitalizing
on the rapid growth of loT.

Our accomplishments in 2018 as mentioned earlier will better prepare us to both
overcome challenges and capture any opportunities that emerge, driving our growth.
Since the middle of 2018, we have had in place strategies to improve and optimize
inventory management. We have also devised plans to optimize operating margins with
technologically advanced new products as well as efficiently manage and minimize
operating expenses.

We have the right strategy, a qualified team and unwavering resolve to deliver on our
goals. Our steadfast determination is already reaping rewards in terms of revenue and
shipment growth, as well as readiness to seize new opportunities. | look forward to
reporting on our results in the very near future as we set out to deliver better outcomes
to all of our stakeholders.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and our employees for
their perseverance, diligence and dedication during the year, as well as our business
partners and shareholders for their much valued support.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANA
BEE @ KA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's total sales were US$98.1 million
(2017: US$82.5 million). A net loss of US$13.8 million (2017: US$10.3 million) was
recorded, mainly attributable to provisions made for slow moving inventories due
to reduced market demand for some of the Group’s products resulting in diminished
gross profit margins, and a decrease in net finance income due to a less favourable
investment environment during the year of 2018 compared to that of 2017.

Sales and Gross Profit

The Group recorded an increase in total shipments by around 37% year-on-year to
approximately 295.8 million units (2017: 215.2 million units). The overall book-to-bill
ratio of the Group for 2018 was 1.0 (2017: 1.1).

With the strong growth in the sales of the Group’s advanced display products and large
display driver ICs in 2018, the total sales increased by approximately 19% year-on-year
to around US$98.1 million (2017: US$82.5 million).

Owing to the intense price competition in the market and the aforesaid inventory
provision, the gross margin decreased by 6.9 percentage points to 28.7% (2017: 35.6%)
attributable to a change in the product mix of the Group. The gross profit of the Group
decreased to US$28.2 million (2017: US$29.3 million).

Costs and Expenses

The Group has remained vigilant in controlling its expenses but as a technology
company, it is committed to investing in product R&D and business development. The
Group's total expenses, including product R&D costs, S&D expenses and administrative
expenses, were US$48.7 million (2017: US$49.7 million), down mildly by US$1.0 million
or 2% year-on-year.

The Group continued to invest in product R&D and business development and remained
prudent in its product R&D spending. New technology development and new product
introduction mainly concentrated on viable and profitable businesses, thereby resulting
in an overall reduction in R&D expenditure from US$34.5 million to US$31.5 million
(dropped US$3.0 million or 8.7% year-on-year). Product R&D costs to sales ratio was
32.1% (2017: 41.8%).

S&D expenses were US$4.0 million (2017: US$3.3 million) whilst the S&D expenses to
sales ratio was 4.1% (2017: 4.0%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

81 75 [B] A ()

Administrative expenses were US$13.2 million, increased by US$1.3 million from
US$11.9 million in 2017. The increase was mainly on depreciation of the additional
fixed assets invested in the new overseas technology centres and related travel and
entertainment expenses for business expansion.

Other Income and Gains — Net
Other income in 2018 totalled US$4.6 million (2017: US$6.1 million), comprising mainly
government subsidies for the product R&D projects of the Group.

Finance Income — Net

The Group has invested in financial assets as part of its treasury management for
interest and dividend income. During 2018, the Group recorded an interest income of
US$0.4 million (2017: US$0.8 million) and a dividend income of US$0.1 million (2017:
US$0.3 million).

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL Portfolio”) are
stated at fair value. The fair value of the FVTPL Portfolio traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices as at the reporting date. The FVTPL Portfolio based on
the mark-to-market prices as at 31 December 2018 recorded a net fair value loss of
US$0.7 million (2017: net fair value gain of US$2.9 million) on marketable and listed
debt or equity securities. A net fair value gain of US$2.2 million (2017: net fair value
loss of US$0.1 million) was recorded for a derivative instrument and an unlisted equity
security.

As a result, the Group recorded a net finance income of US$2.0 million (2017: US$3.9
million) from treasury investment.

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to execute treasury
management policy, review the overall investment portfolio and monitor the
performance on a regular basis to increase the vyield of cash reserves. The Team
conducts regular review teleconferences/meetings with individual external portfolio
managers and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and monitor the investment
performance. A majority of the FVTPL was under external professional portfolio
management as at 31 December 2018.

To support strategic investment and expansion for product portfolio and business, the

Group has disposed of, approximately 60% of the net investment in financial assets to
meet the cash requirement during 2018.

8 Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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With the FVTPL Portfolio maintained as at 31 December 2018 consists mainly of
marketable bonds, mutual funds and exchange trade funds held through reputable
financial institutions including Goldman Sachs, UBS and Hang Seng Bank, the Group
expects a stable stream of income to be sustained.

Net Profit and Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the pretax loss was US$13.8 million (2017:
US$10.3 million). The loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
US$13.7 million (2017: US$10.2 million), mainly due to inventory provision and decrease
in net finance income.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, total cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of the
Group amounted to US$13.4 million (2017: US$23.3 million).

Regarding the use of cash reserves, the Group will continue to allocate funds for
product development, securing production capacity, strengthening its infrastructure
in China and Taiwan to broaden its customer base and capture market and sales
opportunities, entering into strategic corporate ventures, and meeting general corporate
operational purposes. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no major borrowing other
than the bank loan of US$0.2 million in a Korean subsidiary. The Group’s cash balance
was mainly invested in various deposits in banks.

Most of the Group's trade receivables and payables are quoted in US dollars. The Group
closely monitors the movement of foreign exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain
favorable exchange rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group did not use any
derivative instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure in operation as the
Directors considered this exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities
In 2018, capital expenditure of the Group was US$1.9 million (2017: US$5.5 million).

As at 31 December 2018, no material capital expenditure contracted for but not yet
incurred (2017: US$0.3 million).

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital commitment or
contingent liability.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
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Business Review

In 2018, the Group achieved a year-on-year increase in total shipments of around 37%
to approximately 295.8 million units. Total sales were also up year-on-year by around
19% to approximately US$98.1 million. The increase in both unit shipments and sales
was mainly attributable to the growth of the large display driver IC and bistable display
driver IC businesses.

During 2018, the Group launched a number of new products, among which PMOLED
Touch and Display Driver Integration (TDDI) IC was of particular significance as it
marked an important industry milestone. It is therefore expected to become a key
revenue driver in 2019 and beyond. The Group also successfully leveraged Solomon
Systech (China) Limited (or Nanjing Technology Center (NJTC)), which is strategically
located in Nanjing Jiangbei New District, to bolster its large display driver IC business.
The strengthened operations at NJTC has helped to build a strong foundation for driving
business development in China going forward.

The Group managed to achieve some major design wins with international brands for
its touch controller ICs and bistable display driver ICs, which are expected to commence
mass production in 2019.

The Group's unit shipments by product types during the year under review were as
follows:
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Total B 295.8 215.2 37%
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Advanced Display

The Advanced Display (“AD") products include PMOLED display, OLED lighting products
and bistable products. In addition to standard ICs, the Group also provides custom IC
design services, including analog, mixed-signal and high-voltage IC designs to cater for
the specific needs of customers.

The total unit shipments of AD products in 2018 recorded year-on-year growth of around
15% to approximately 184.4 million units (2017: 160.4 million units).

While the Group’s PMOLED display driver IC business witnessed strong growth in
the first half of 2018, in the second half year, the reduced market demand for some
applications adversely affected the sales of the Group's standard PMOLED display
driver ICs. Nonetheless, the Group managed to score design wins with key international
brands of wearables and smart home appliances, and capture the business opportunities
arising from the shift in display trend from monochrome to higher resolution grayscale.

The Group's key innovation in 2018, the PMOLED TDDI IC SSD7317, which is the first
of its kind in the world, was officially launched into the market at the end of 2018.
This ground breaking innovation has garnered the Technological Achievement Award
at the 2018 Hong Kong Awards for Industries, and was highly commended at the IET
(Institution of Engineering and Technology) Innovation Awards. Besides such accolades,
the Group’s partner panel manufacturer was the recipient of the “Outstanding Product
Award — Materials and Components Category” at the 2018 Gold Panel Awards in
Taiwan for its PMOLED TDDI IC SSD7317 module. Pilot production of this award-
winning new product is expected to start in the first half of 2019.

The strong growth momentum of the Group’s histable display IC business continued
in the second half year of 2018, due to a surge in demand for ESL to cater for the
flourishing trend towards unmanned stores and retail automation, especially in China.
The Group has achieved design wins for ESL applications from renowned retail store
chains. The Group’s newly developed products supporting larger-size bistable display
panels of 7 inches to 13 inches have also started mass production in 2018, targeting
applications like section signage for supermarkets/stores, scoreboards, tags for logistics
asset management, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS feotined)
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK(continued)

X% EERRE®

Large Display
The Group’s Large Display (“LD") products include large panel TFT LCD display driver ICs
developed for TVs, monitors and other applications.

The establishment of the strategic China business and technology center in Nanjing has
helped greatly in facilitating the growth of the Group's large-display driver IC business,
which witnessed strong year-on-year increase in unit shipments of around 289% to
approximately 58.0 million units in 2018 (2017: 14.9 million units).

The Group has succeeded in greatly increasing its share of the 4K UHD TV and FHD
monitor businesses from Panda-FPD, a key customer, resulting in a surge in product
shipment and sales. The Group has also been collaborating with Panda-FPD and CEC
Panda’s new Gen 8.6 fab in Chengdu to develop a point-to-point display driver IC for
targeting the high-end 120Hz UHD TV and 8K TV markets, which are poised for growth
in 2019 and beyond.

The Group has qualified to serve as a major supplier of Chengdu fab and Caihong
Optoelectronics Technology in Xianyang. As mass production already commenced at
the end of 2018 for the Chengdu fab and in March 2019 for Caihong Optoelectronics
Technology, the Group's revenue stream will be further enhanced.

Others

Apart from AD and LD products, the Group also provides other products, among which
include: Mobile Touch (“MT") products covering AMOLED touch controller ICs (foldable/
flexible/POLED/rigid) and LCD touch controller ICs (Out-Cell/On-Cell/Hybrid In-Cell) for
smartphones, video game console controllers, wearables, active styluses, tablets, etc.;
Mobile Display (“MD") products such as In-Cell TDDI ICs and TFT LCD display driver ICs
supporting smartphones, tablets, etc.; and MIPI bridge ICs for virtual reality devices, test
jigs, smart watches, etc.

The unit shipments of this category of products increased by approximately 34% year-
on-year to around 53.4 million units (2017: 39.9 million units).

Delays in the launch of mature LCD TDDI products have chiefly impacted the MD
products business. Nonetheless, the Group’s maXTouch® touch controller ICs,
particularly those for flexible AMOLED display panels, have managed to score design
wins with international brands of smartphones and tablets. Furthermore, the Group’s
MT products have been incorporated into well-known smart watch brands and the touch
pads of a video game console brand.

12 Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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To get well prepared for capitalizing on the upcoming foldable AMOLED displays trend,
the Group taped out a new foldable AMOLED touch controller IC at the end of 2018.

The Group's In-Cell TDDI IC for FHD+ (1080 x 2160) LTPS panels was featured in the
latest smartphone model of a key brand. It has also been designed-in by a number
of independent design houses for smartphones, and qualified by certain smartphone
makers in China. The Group's MIPI bridge ICs have scored design wins for a range of
applications, including virtual reality devices, test jigs, GPS devices, learning devices,
etc.

Outlook

Faced with risks and uncertainties surrounding the global economy and semiconductor
industry in 2019, the Group will strive to leverage thriving target application markets,
including ESLs, wearables and smart handheld devices; its strategic China business
and technology center in Nanjing; and its newly developed innovative products to drive
growth.

Advanced Display

The Group's key innovation in 2018, the PMOLED TDDI IC, is expected to commence
mass production in the second half of 2019, and thereby contribute to the Group's
revenue stream. The Group will also continue to capitalize on the growth potential of
smart home appliances and wristbands with grayscale displays to achieve progress.

The Group's bistable display driver IC business, bolstered by the ongoing trend towards
unmanned stores and retail automation, is set to continue its strong growth momentum
in 2019. The Group has also been developing new ICs to cater for the requirements
of the next generation of e-paper displays, ensuring it remains at the forefront of the
technology.

Large Display

The Group's large display driver IC business is on a strong footing for growth in 2019,
given that the 4K UHD TV and FHD monitor businesses with Panda-FPD continue to
prosper, and mass production for its Chengdu customer and Caihong Optoelectronics
Technology in Xianyang will start to ramp up. The Group will nonetheless remain
motivated to reach out to more potential customers.

The point-to-point display driver IC for the high-end 120Hz UHD TV and 8K TV markets
jointly developed with Panda-FPD and Panda’s new fab in Chengdu is expected to start
mass production during 2019, and will go towards capturing the flourishing market.
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MANAG EMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK (continued)

¥ 50BN R E@E
Others

The key design wins scored by the Group’s touch controller IC with major brands of
smartphones, tablets and video game console controllers in 2018 are expected to start
mass production in 2019, further enhancing the revenue stream. The newly developed
touch controller IC supporting foldable AMOLED panels will also commence mass
production in the second half of 2019 and is expected to become a key revenue driver.

The design wins achieved in 2018 by the Group’s mobile display products will continue
to bring in revenue in 2019. The Group is committed to achieving more design wins and
extending the application of its In-Cell TDDI IC and MIPI bridge chips.

Product Development
In 2018, the Group spent roughly US$31.5 million on R&D, representing about 64.7% of
total expenses and 32.1% of total revenue for the year.

The Group’s product R&D engineering teams possess domain expertise in various areas,
spanning from design of high-speed serial master bridges, TDDIs, In-Cell and On-Cell
touch controller ICs and OLED lighting driver ICs, to display drivers for various panel
technologies such as amorphous silicon TFT, metal-oxide TFT, LTPS, POLED, AMOLED,
PMOLED and AMEPD. This wide array of critical knowhow enables fast fulfillment of
customers’ increasingly sophisticated requirements.

IP Development

The IPs that have been developed or were under development during 2018 included,
among others, a smart power reduction technology, a power and time reduction scheme,
and also an In-Cell touch sensing frontend technology for PMOLED display, a lossless
image data compression scheme and an increased color depth dithering scheme for
ePaper, a panel diagnostic technology for ESLs, and a high speed serial interface for
large display.

During the year, the Group has been granted 9 patents and filed 23 patents covering
various display design and application areas. The Group has been encouraging patent
application and filing, with a view to further strengthening its intellectual property
portfolio to facilitate business growth in the future.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total workforce of 409 employees'. Of the
total workforce, around 35% were based in the Hong Kong head office with the rest
located in China, Japan, Korea, Taiwan and the UK.
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Note:  Data in the above charts excludes the manufacturing subsidiary

About 87% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor's degree or above, and around
43% have earned a master's degree or higher academic qualifications. The Group’s
emphasis on R&D is also reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 68% are
engineers who specialize in product design and development. The entire team has, on
average, above 15 years of working experience.
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Training & Development

At Solomon Systech, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous Learning”, and
to inspire, engage and develop our staff so they can achieve excellence. In 2018, the
Group dedicated a total of over 4,300 man-hours? to training and development, covering
industrial and technical training, and others including corporate governance, project
management, internal controls, etc. Apart from in-house training, the Group has also
encouraged employees to take external job-related courses and sponsors a portion of
the tuition.

Employee’s Well-being

We invest in the health, safety, and wellness of our employees because we care about
their well-being. Apart from providing a safe working environment and health insurance
covering medical, disability, accidental and life benefits to eligible employees, in 2018,
the Company has organized a range of activities for employees to help them strike a
healthy work-life balance and also promote team building. The Group also arranged
leisure activities inviting our employees to participate together with their family
members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding employees and attracting
new talent with the right incentives, in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests
with its own. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams in appreciation
of the order winning on our new products. The Group also offer cash reward schemes
including KPI Incentive for recognizing the attainment of annual KPI on both the team
and individual levels, and ES1 MP Award for new products which garner design wins for
mass production with the first sample ready. Patent Awards are in place to encourage
and reward technological innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to
reward employees of long standing.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility (“CSR") and ensure that it becomes part of the everyday operations of the
Group. The Group’s ESG working committee has monitored the Group’s performance
in the areas of employees, the marketplace, the environment and the community
during 2018 for preparation of an ESG Report. The Group’s ESG Report for 2018 will be
published on the Company's website at www.solomon-systech.com.

2 Data excludes the manufacturing subsidiary

2 HETERRELEZHE LA
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Chairman

Mr. Li Rongxin, Aged 48

° Non-executive Director

o Appointed to the Board: 2014

o Chairman of the Board: since June 2016

. Member of the Nomination Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and Experience:
o Received a bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from Fudan University, and
an EMBA degree from Thunderbird School of Global Management

o Named “Shanghai’s Top 10 IT Youth Elites” in 2011
o Well experienced in the technology field. Has worked in the US and South East
Asia

Current Appointments Include:

o Chairman of Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Ltd.

o Deputy general manager of Huada

. Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd.("Belling”) (SSE:600171)

o Director of Montage Technology Group Limited (NASDAQ: MONT), a company
delisted in November 2014 upon the acquisition by a joint venture company of
CEC

Former Appointments Include:

. General manager and later the director of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit
Co. Ltd

° Worked in Intel (China) Co. Ltd from 1996 to 2006 and also Belling on new
product development

Executive Directors

Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi, Aged 64

° CEQ: since January 2016

. Executive Director: since March 2016 (Resigned from the Board on 20 March
2019)

. Chairman of the Investment Committee

. Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule 3.05 of the Listing
Rules

o Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Saved as disclosed in this Annual Report, Dr. Yeh did not hold any directorships in the
companies of which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or overseas in the last
three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT coreces
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Skills and Experience:
° Received a diploma in Chemical Engineering from Taipei Institute of Technology

° Received a master of science degree in engineering science and a PhD degree in
engineering science from the University of Mississippi, USA.
° With over 30 years experience in the semiconductor and electronics industry

Former Appointments Include:

° Adjunct Professor, Electronics Engineering Department of the National Tsing Hua
University in Taiwan

° President of Availink, Inc.

° President of Home Entertainment Business Unit, Sunplus Technology Co. Ltd.
(TWSE: 2401, LSE: SUPD)

° Others: various senior management positions with startup and mature companies,
including Faraday Technology Corporation, Winbond Electronics Corporation,
Cheertek, Inc., etc

Mr. LO Wai Ming, Aged 56

° Executive Director

° Appointed to the Board: 2016

° Member of the Investment Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Lo did not hold any directorships in the companies of
which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or overseas in the last three years.

Skills and Experience:

° Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers

° Holds a master of science degree in electronic engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now The Hong Kong Polytechnic University), and a master of science
degree in energy and environmental sustainability from The Open University of
Hong Kong

° With over 30 years of working experience in the electronics industry in managing
global business operations including product engineering, product applications,
business and market development

Current Appointments Include:

° Corporate VP and Head of Large Display Business

° Director of Kitronix Limited and Beijing LED Energy Management Technology
Co. Ltd., the associated companies of the Group; and Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group, including the regional offices of the Company in
Taiwan, Korea and the UK
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Former Appointments Include:

o Executive Director of the Company from 2004 to 2010

. Founding employee, Business Operations Director and Business Unit Head of the
Group

o Operations manager of Motorola Semiconductors Hong Kong Limited

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Li Jun, Aged 43

° Non-executive Director

o Appointed to the Board: 2014

o Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and Experience:

. Graduated from Wu Han University with a doctoral degree in photogrammetry
and remote sensing

o With over 10 years of working experience, spanning government industrial
planning, enterprise strategy, informatization planning and science & technology
management

o Directed the writing of Development and Application of China's Strategic
Emerging Industries, Development and Management Practice of China’s Strategic
Emerging Industries, Investment & Financing and M&A Strategies of China's
Strategic Emerging Industries, and Development and Application of China’s Cloud
Computing Industry

Current Appointments Include:

o General manager, department of planning, science & technology of CEC

. Non-executive director of TPV Technology Limited (HKSE: 0903) and China
Greatwall Technology Group Co., Ltd. (SSE: 000066)

Former Appointments Include:

. President and executive director of CCID Consulting Company Limited (HKSE:
8235)

o Deputy chief engineer of China Center for Information Industry Development, the
think tank under the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Aged 54

° Non-executive Director

o Appointed to the Board: 2018

. Member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT e
FENafEEE.

Skills and Experience:

Graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor
physics and devices
Extensive experience in semiconductor industry

Current Appointments Include:

Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd., CEC Huada International Co. Ltd. and
Nanjing Micro One Electronics Inc.
Vice general manager of Huada

Former Appointments Include:

Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project division of business
management department, division chief of integrated circuit & components
division of corporate development department, vice general manager of
integrated circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

Director of China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (HKSE: 0085),
Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (HKSE: 1347), Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co.,
Ltd. and Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying, Aged 55

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2014

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment
Committee

Skills and Experience:

Received a bachelor's degree from the University of Bradford, United Kingdom,
a master's degree from London School of Economics and Political Science of
University of London, United Kingdom and a bachelor's degree in Chinese Laws
from Peking University, the PRC

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as well as
committee member of Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association

Current Appointments Include:

Managing director and founder of Proton Capital Limited

Member of the Public Affairs Forum of the HKSAR Government

Committee member of the Political Consultative Committee of Wu Hua County of
Guangdong Province

Arbitrator of the Panel of Arbitrators of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission
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Former Appointments Include:
. Member to the Listing Committee of Stock Exchange (2010-2016)
° Executive director of Harmonic Strait Financial Holdings Limited (HKSE: 0033)

o Independent non-executive director of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8109)

. Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Corporate
Finance Committee, the Expert Panel on Listing and the Advisory Committee on
Listing and Takeover Regulations

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu, Age 49

o Independent Non-executive Director

. Appointed to the Board: 2014

o Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
o Member of the Nomination Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Sheu did not hold any directorships in the companies of
which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or overseas in the last three years.

Skills and Experience:

o Received a bachelor's degree in business/managerial economics from the
University of California, San Diego

o With over 18 years of high technology industry experience focusing on strategy,
business development and supply chain integration for original development
manufacturers and original equipment manufacturers

Current Appointments Include:
. Special Assistant to the Chairman & CEQ (Strategy & Planning) of Quanta
Computer Inc.

Former Appointments Include:

o Alternate director to Dr. Lam Pak Lee, a non-executive director of the Company
who retired from the Board at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting held
in May 2014

Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph, Aged 69

. Independent Non-executive Director

o Appointed to the Board: 2011

. Chairman of the Nomination Committee

° Member of the Audit Committee, Investment Committee and Remuneration
Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Yiu did not hold any directorships in the companies of
which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or overseas in the last three years
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT coreces

EEC N REEE.

Skills and Experience:

° Received a master's degree in electrical engineering, computer science and
business administration, respectively

° With rich work experience covering automotive electronics, computer systems,
wireless communication and semiconductor products, and for both technical and
corporate management fields

Former Appointments Include:

° Chairman emeritus of Freescale Semiconductor (Hong Kong) Ltd (“FSHKL") and
advisor to FSHKL on regional business strategy, government affairs and corporate
governance

o Corporate vice president of Motorola Group and general manager of Motorola
Semiconductors Hong Kong Limited

Founder and Chairman Emeritus
Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 62, is the Founder and Chairman Emeritus of the
Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. NG Sui Wa, aged 56, Vice President, Finance. Mr. Ng joined Solomon Systech
Limited in 2017. He is currently acting as the Company Secretary and the Authorized
Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules and is also
a director of various wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ng graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree. He has extensive experiences
in auditing, accounting, finance and company secretarial work. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ng served as chief financial officer and company secretary of a listed
company in Hong Kong for almost 15 years.
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Senior Management

Mr. LO Wai Ming (please refer to Executive Director section on p. 18)

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 53, Corporate VP and Head of Advanced
Display Business Unit. Mr. Wang rejoined Solomon Systech Limited in 2006 as Business
Operations Director.

Dr. Wu Wenchi, aged 50, Vice President, Design Engineering. Dr. Wu joined Solomon
Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Wu was assistant general
manager of Socle Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in electrical
engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 54, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo joined Solomon
Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources Manager.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 53, Planning & Customer Services Director. Mr. Wong joined
Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as Business Process Solutions Manager.

Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules, there
has been the following change in information of Directors of our Company subsequent
to the date of the Company’s 2018 Interim Report:

o Mr. Ma Yuchuan ceased to be a director of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited in
2018
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board of Directors and the management of the Group are committed to achieving
and maintaining high standards of corporate governance and continuously improve
these standards, which the Group considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity
of its business operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the Company, and good
corporate governance is indispensable for long-term business success and sustainable
performance of the Group. The management also actively and constantly observes the
latest corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and overseas, particularly
those in UK and USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance principles that
emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls, stringent disclosure practices,
transparency and accountability. The Company has complied with all the applicable
Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2018. To maintain high
standards of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the recommended best
practices in the Code where appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to
continuously improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for Directors’ securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2018. Regarding the shares held by the Directors, the details are listed
in the “Report of the Directors” from pages 45 to 57 of this Annual Report. Pursuant
to the Code Provision A.6.4, the Company established its own written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for Directors and relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant employees conformed to the
Group's own guidelines throughout the year 2018.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the Company’s business and
affairs with the goal of maximizing long-term value for shareholders, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

o Strategy and management

° Group structure and capital

° Financial reporting and control

° Internal controls
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o Major contracts

° Corporate communications

o Board membership and other appointments
o Remuneration

. Authority and delegation

o Corporate governance

o Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate primarily to the daily
operations of the Group are delegated to the management under the supervision and
leadership of the CEQ.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises two Executive Directors,
three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The size
and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account the
scope and nature of the Company's operations, to ensure that the size of the Board
is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate effective decision-making.
The biographical details of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any,
are set out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 23 of
this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except as disclosed in the section of
“Board of Directors and Senior Management”, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board and the Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate persons as members of
the Board for the role. Since 2013, the Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which
has been published on the Company’'s website for better transparency and corporate
governance.

Details of the Nomination Committee’s review in 2018 on the Diversity Policy are
mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report’s “Nomination Committee” Section.
Further objectives in quantitative terms will be established in 2019 and the results to be
disclosed in due course.

The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates can bring to the Board.
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To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has delegated specific
functions to four Board Committees. The principal Board Committees are the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment

Committee, details of which are as follows: HEBEHNET

Date of first Date of last

appointment re-election as

to the Board Director

BREZRE Bi—R Audit  Remuneration  Nomination Investment

Position REEERE EgERA Committee Committee Committee Committee
iz iof=) EEMAH ENZEE FMWEEE REZE5E® REZEE

Li Rongxin Non-executive Director/Chairman 8 October 2014 7 June 2017 | |
TEE ¥NTES/ IR 2014410888 201746778
Li Jun Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 7 June 2017 |
Flg EHTES 2014510488 2017F6A78
Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director 14 March 2018 6 June 2018 | |
FE EHTES 20183148 2018F6A6H
Yeh Tsuei Chi Executive Director/CEQ 23 March 2016 6 June 2018 C
E%53 HOEZ/TRER 201653 A 238 2018F6A6H
Lo Wai Ming Executive Director 7 June 2016 7 June 2017 |
EfEH HITEZR 2016F6A7H 2017F6A7H
Leung Heung Ying Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 6 June 2018 C | y |
2ZH BUHTES 2014510488 2018F6A6H
Sheu Wei Fu Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 7 June 2017 C |
TR BUHTES 2014510488 2017F6A7H
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph  Independent Non-executive Director 6 July 2011 6 June 2018 | | C |
PN BUHTES 201META6H 2018F6A6H

C — chairman of the committee Z § € + &
J/ — member of the committee Z 8 & %,

ARREBEFELRB UREEEALRE
BXBLEBMARELNREREE -

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify our Directors against
possible claims and liabilities arising out of the Group’s business and activities.
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Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year, and the Board will also
meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
The meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and internal control of the
Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman
to prepare the agenda of the meetings and each Director may request to include any
relevant matters on the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the
regular meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have comprehensive
briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated three days before convening each
Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed documents to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make
informed decisions regarding the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may
receive accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are made available and circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who
regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are
observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the compliance
with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to
provide separate appropriate independent professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board, the Company will deal with the matter by a physical board
meeting rather than written resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board
Committee was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-executive
Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend the meeting to deal with the
matter if it is considered appropriate. Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under
the Listing Rules, any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum in the relevant Board
meeting or no vote for the relevant Board resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and procedures used in the
Board meetings.
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Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and General EFEeR EFZESEEREE
Meetings X
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and AREEEEHENEZEELSS B899
General Meetings during the year are set out below: HZEBRERSFBINTER:
Annual/
Extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination Investment
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
RRAF/ ESE $HZEE FMZEE REZEE REZES
BRAE 83 ] f f g3
Number of mestings held BOEERY 2 15 2 3 4 0
Members of the Board EZBRE Number of meetings attended (Attendance Rate) HEE 3RS (HER)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Li Rongxin (Chairman) FREEE) 1/50% 15/100% 4/100% -
Li Jun ik 0/0% 8/43% -
Ma Yuchuan SEI0 1/100% 13/100% 1/100% 1/100%
Zhao Guiwy HE R 0/0% 2/100% 1/100% 2/100%
Executive Directors HITES
Yeh Tsuei Chi (CEO) Eza(Tnes) 2/100% 14/93% -
Lo Wai Ming EEH 2/100% 14/93% -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Leung Heung Ying PR 1/50% 10/67% 2/100% 3/100% 4/100% -
Sheu Wei Fu HE:HS 1/50% 14/93% 3/100% 4/100%
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph PR A 1/50% 13/87% 2/100% 3/100% 4/100% -
i) Appointed as director on 14 March 2018 (i) HR2018FIA 14 EZTAEE
(ii) Resigned as director on 14 March 2018 (i) R2018FE3A 140 BT EZE

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive Directors and Non- RBEFTABXEALTR  BUFRNTESRIE
executive Directors should attend general meetings. According to the above table, HITEFELERRAG - RELAIEX K
all the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive NAIMAEBYERITES  FRTEERANT
Directors were present at the 2018 AGM and available to answer questions from EEHCLEFE0BRRBAFRS W EE AR A
shareholders of the Company except Dr. Li Jun who was busy at a business trip. BRsEE BTFREBETEARBHE -

During 2018, the Chairman had once held a board meeting with non-executive directors R2018F - TR ERERTEETRELFHT
and independent non-executive directors to discuss various matters. EREBRT-NEZCERIRSESHE
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Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director to
all the Directors of the Company. All the Directors of the Company understand that they
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that they are equipped with all information required for
making relevant contributions to the Board.

The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for instance, Directors’
duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to Directors and
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment. All Directors are
encouraged to have continuous professional development to enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

In 2018, all of the Directors attended the seminars or read materials on the corporate
governance, updates on laws, rules and regulations and other professional skills.
Directors were also encouraged to take educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent Non-executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive Directors) of the Company a record of
the training received for the year ended 2018 indicating their compliance to the Code
Provision A.6.5.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Li Rongxin, and the
CEO, Dr. Yeh are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an appropriate
balance of power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for
independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Li Rongxin, is responsible for ensuring that all
Directors act in the best interest of shareholders. Acting independently from the
Company, he is fully accountable to the shareholders and contributes to the Board
and the Group on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned with
three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring the Group's effective
communication with shareholders and implementing a high standard of corporate
governance.

Dr. Yeh, as CEQ, is responsible for managing the Group and executing the strategies
adopted by the Board. He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that a proper internal control
system is in place and that the Group’s business conforms to applicable laws and
regulations. The CEQ chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also the
weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly employees’ communication
meeting.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such other
period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to time prescribe. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director at the
annual general meeting at which he retires.

In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, the Company implemented the policy regarding the terms of office
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors (“Service Term
Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual general meeting at
which they retire.
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Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry and business
experience to the Group. The composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment pursuant to
the Code Provision A.3 so as to further strengthen the Company’s corporate governance.
The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient caliber and number for their views to
carry weight. At least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent Non-
executive Directors will have a private discussion with the Chairman on the Group's
matters. In addition, Non-executive Directors, according to the Group's policy, may
approach the Group's employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the year, the
Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive Directors to seek their views
on certain business or operational matters.

During the year 2018, the Board had a total of three Independent Non-executive
Directors and they represented more than one-third of the Board, which is a sufficient
number to meet the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of experience to the
Board and make active contributions to the Group. They closely monitor the Group's
development and freely express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent
Non-executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report, do not have any
business with or financial interests in the Group and confirmed their independence
to the Group pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Subject to re-election according to the procedures set out in the Company's Articles
of Association, the Company has entered into service contracts for a renewed term
ended on 30 June 2019 with each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Structure
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority of the votes in the Remuneration
Committee are exercisable by Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee
does not deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall be a matter
for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director or senior executive will be involved
in any discussion in connection with his or her own remuneration. The Committee
also consults the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other
Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if considered necessary. The
Committee consulted the head of human resources in respect of human resources policy
and market as well as other company information.
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The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be held not less than once
a year to review and approve principally the remuneration of Executive Directors of the
Company. The Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Sheu Wei Fu, has delegated to the
CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of all the employees of the Group below
the rank of Executive Director. Policy related remuneration schemes will be decided by
the Remuneration Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

o To determine the framework and broad policy for the remuneration of Directors,
senior management and general staff

o To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management

o To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors (including
Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration

. To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including benefits in kind,
pension right and compensation payment

° To review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for
misconduct to Executive Directors and senior management which shall be fair
and not excessive

o To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the Executive Directors
and/or senior management which should reflect the Company’s business
objectives and targets

° To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive Directors and review
the annual performance bonus for senior management achievements against the
performance criteria and by reference to market norms

o To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or advise the
Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers necessary

In 2018, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration policy for the
Executive Directors, assessed their performances as well as reviewed their employment
contracts with the Group. Details of remuneration of Directors and the senior
management can be obtained in Note 10 and 34(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements section.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority being Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee generally meets before the annual general meeting, or at
other times as required by the Chairman of the Committee.

The Nomination Committee, led by the Chairman Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph, will
identify qualified candidates to fill the Board membership whenever such vacancy
arises. It will nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly review
the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions on any change that may be
required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company's corporate strategy

° To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

° To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to appoint or to
recommend to shareholders for election

° To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his
responsibilities

o To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer as well as the
senior management

° To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the policy

In 2018, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the nomination of Directors,
the nomination procedures, the process and criteria to select and recommend candidate
for directorship and the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with a good balance and
diversity of skills and experiences appropriate for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new
directors and the biographical information of the candidate concerned, will evaluate
such candidate based on a number of criteria including but not limited to qualification,
experience, special expertise, personal integrity, etc. to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. If so, the qualified candidate or the highest
ranked candidate in case of more than one qualified candidates, will be recommended
to the Board for appointment.

During 2018, the appointment of Mr. Ma Yuchuan as non-executive director has referred
to the aforesaid policy and guidelines.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors, two Non-executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors. It shall meet at the request of
any member of the Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Vice President,
Finance, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi, will evaluate and
approve any strategic investment of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment
exceeding that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board's approval.
The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the Group, to seek external professional
advice it considers necessary and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings.
The Committee will also periodically report the status and performance of investments
to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:

o To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities in relation to
investment activities (excluding treasury or cash management)

o To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities related to
investment

° To establish and document the basic investment principles and beliefs held by
the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct for avoiding possible conflict of

interest

° To have all necessary access and authority to seek information from management
to fulfill its objectives, duties and responsibilities

o To review the appointment of external professional advisers

o To review and monitor investment performance

o To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of existing investments

o To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and to recommend
to the Board any required changes

o To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the Committee’s

activities, findings, recommendations and results for the past year

In 2018, the Investment Committee has reviewed and monitored the performance of
investments and advise the Board on disposal of investment item.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-
executive Director and is chaired by Mr. Leung Heung Ying (“Mr. Leung”). Mr. Leung is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has many years of corporate
finance experience at company board level. Mr. Leung meets the requirement of having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the purpose of such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review and discuss the
internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate governance, interim and annual
consolidated financial statements respectively. It may hold additional meetings from
time to time to discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a meeting if they
consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff for the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any activity within its
terms of reference; (i) seeking any information it requires from any employee; and (iii)
obtaining outside legal or other independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

° To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the independent auditor, and deal with any question of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor

° To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor and internal
auditor, the adequacy of the Group's policies and procedures regarding risk
management and internal control systems, and any statement by the Directors to
be included in the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

° To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity, effectiveness of the
audit process and the scope of the independent audit including the engagement
letter, prior to commencement of audit
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o To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial reports prior to
approval by the Board and liaise with the Board and senior management, and the
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the independent auditor

o To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent auditor; obtain the
comments of management regarding the responsiveness of the independent
auditor to the Group’s needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which if not satisfactorily
resolved would result in the issue of a qualified report on the Group’s financial
statements

o To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis, information about
policies and processes for maintaining independence and monitoring compliance
with relevant requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

o To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results of internal audit
function, ensure co-ordination between the internal and independent auditors
and ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group

o To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems of internal
control and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have an effective
internal control system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget

o To review the findings of internal investigations and the management'’s response
into any suspected frauds or irregularities or failures of internal controls or
infringements of laws, rules and regulations

° To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 to
review and discuss the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the work performed
by Corporate Audit Section and to re-appoint of the independent auditor of the Group.
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As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate governance duties, the
Committee performed the following duties during the year ended 31 December 2018:

o To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules which come into effect for accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2017, in particular in the area of risk management, and to review
the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure compliance

° To review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management

° To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements

o To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to employees and the
Directors

° To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report

Accountability and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated financial statements of the
annual and interim reports. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. When the Directors are aware of material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, such uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out and discussed
at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor's Remuneration

The Group's independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young is responsible for
auditing and forming an independent opinion on the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements. Apart from the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial
statements, Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the condensed
consolidated interim financial information of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2018 as well as advise the Group on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in respect of audit and non-

audit (interim results review) services provided by them for the year ended 31 December
2018 are US$138,500 and US$65,400 respectively.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and continuous training
of Directors. In 2018, the Company Secretary has undertaken more than 15 hours of
relevant professional training which excessed the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly regarded by the Group. The
Group will make sure the Company’s shareholders know how to exercise their rights.
The Group provides effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, any two or more members of the
Company shall also be able to convene general meetings on the written requisition
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company in
order to bring the same in line with the amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies
Law of the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) in 2014.

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the Company’s Share
Registrar directly. Information on proceedings at general meetings, votes of members,
proxies, dividends and reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed
in the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, which is accessible for
inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar, through website of the Group or the
website of the Stock Exchange. The contact details of the Share Registrar is on page
182 of this Annual Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward
a proposal to the Board, he may put forth his enquiry in writing to the Corporate
Communications Section of the Group who will act on the subject matter accordingly.

Shareholders Communication

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Board adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy,
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly the current practices of
the Company for communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing
the shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company. The Board will regularly reviewed the
policy and considered the effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.
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For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive approach to communicate
with the investment community, for example, institutional investors, analysts and retail
investars. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group conducted meetings and
conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the Group’s profile among
the general public in Hong Kong, interviews were conducted with local media, and
group visits to its principal office were arranged with local universities and technology
institutions

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve its communication
with investors, the Company has been collecting ideas from shareholders and feedback
from the investment community since listing. The Company also appreciates the
opportunity to meet shareholders face-to-face. The Company's Articles of Association
has accommodated the use of websites for communication with shareholders since
2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders and
investors, including (i) annual reports, interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars
and proxy forms which are required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also
choose (or are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using electronic
means through the Company’s website; (i) the annual general meeting which provides
a forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board; {iii)
the Company’'s website which provides updated and key information on the Group
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its shareholders and
stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing meetings with analysts to be held to
update interested parties on the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar
which deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and (vi)
the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which handles enquiries from
shareholders and investors generally.

To the best of the Company's knowledge, as at 31 December 2018, Huada/CEC held
about 28.5% of the Company’s shares, the Board held roughly 2.2%, and the remaining
approximately 69%, is believed to be in public hands.

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also updated constantly
to inform investors and the general public of the latest information of the Group, for
example, the important dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information
for shareholders can be found on pages 182 to 184 of this Annual Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The risk management and
internal control systems within the Group are designed to help the Group achieve
key initiatives, and represent the Group's efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control system is a shared
responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is dedicated to educating all employees
via trainings to ensure they understand the importance of internal control policies and
adhere to them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted the Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by COSO (the “2013 Framework”). The presence of risk
management and internal control systems empowers the Group to implement best
business practices in dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a way of explaining
the relationship between functions and as a guide to how responsibilities of risk
management should be divided:

o Under the first line of defence, operational management has ownership,
responsibility and accountability for directly assessing, controlling and mitigating
risks;

o The second line of defence consists of activities covered by components of
internal governance (compliance, financial controller, quality, IT and other control
departments). This line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational management and assists
the risk owners in reporting adequate risk related information up and down the
organization; and

. Internal audit forms the Group's third line of defence. The Corporate Audit
Section, through a risk-based approach to its work, provides reasonable
assurance to the Group's board of directors and senior management.
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The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
arising from its recurrent and growth businesses and from the constantly changing
business environment. The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the consequence of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required management attention and risk
treatment effort. All risks are ranked and their treatment is determined by a combination
of likelihood and consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to review the progress
of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness of the risk management.

The board oversees the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. Risk management was established as one of the agenda items in board
meeting on 13 March 2018 and board of directors have reviewed the risk management
framewark and process, company’s strategic goals, risk appetite, and the update of risk
management matrix, covering risks in business, operation, finance and compliance, in
the meeting held on 22 August 2018.

The Board reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions, by considering:

(@) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group's ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment;

(b)  the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of
the internal control systems, and the work of its internal audit function and
independent auditor;

(c)  the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results to the board
which enables it to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management;

(d)  significant control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the period (if any). Also, the extent to which they have resulted in unforeseen
outcomes or contingencies that have had, could have had, or may in the future
have, a material impact on the Group's financial performance or condition;

42 Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018

AEERDBEEER A5 FEMEREL
FUMEBEREBURTEHECNEBREMS
RHOERRER - AREEHEREZBENE
TE B fe K S o & R B Al A AR Y R B O A BE
HMERSHEMRRRFGE BRIFBARBRT
ENEEBRINEREAMBONEN M
BERBHETHL YEERARET RE

AREEMERNACRERREY 7 - X%
BUMEEECHAR RN EERREYE
1 # 2 2 A R e B TR 0 A A

EXEREEESENRREEMABEH X
BoH201BFIABEMESZTERA L ApER
BB REREL — WEE2018F8H22H £17
WeZL ESeRETRAREEERMAR

“ﬂmﬁWE@'ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂEﬁmﬂﬂa

R REXRTEE MHEMAARR -

BE20BFNANBILFE - EFgCTER
R EERABEZRORYE EEME EEM
AREFAREREERE ZEMAT

(a) EARBHNEERBEEREMNEE. UK
AEBRENEEBEERIICRREE
0=

b ERERBEERRABIABEZRSN
THEBBRRE RABEZMBILET
B EY T4 -

(C) Fﬂ%%@fggﬁ Ilﬂ%ﬁ’jﬂ¥§$i§&;//\_’
FOUEYEFEARASENEZEBR
FEBRERONFBNER

(d HABENEAREZIRIERANEX
EEBAEER) WERELEEREER
MERLESBFANBERE MaER
RABRAAKTENTHRRALBRE
ELX AHCELIBRALEELNE
AEE

e



(e)  the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rule
compliance;

(f)  The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training program
and budget of the Groups’ accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

() The proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group's operating and financial performance against the
financial budget on a quarterly basis while senior management closely monitored the
financial performance on a monthly basis.

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk management
approach and strategy. They continuously monitors the global business environment,
industry development, as well as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk
management and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively. In 2018, the management reviewed the existing risk
management and internal control systems and further modification of the system will
be implemented in the coming year. The management continues to review the adequacy
of its risk management and control framework and looks for opportunities to make
improvements and add appropriate resources when necessary.

The Group has an independent Corporate Audit Section, reporting directly to the
Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section provides an independent assessment
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with the Code, and assists the Audit Committee to conduct regular reviews
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, which include the
review of the effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Corporate Audit Section follows a risk-based approach.
Different audit areas are assigned with different risk ratings and an audit plan is
formulated accordingly so that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given to
areas with higher risks. The annual work plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee. The Corporate Audit Section conducts regular financial and operational
reviews on the Group and reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
regularly. The Corporate Audit Section monitors the follow up actions agreed upon in
response to its recommendations.
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The Corporate Audit Section updates CEQ about the internal audit working progress on
a weekly basis. The Audit Committee reviews the work performed by Corporate Audit
Section and summary of major findings and control weaknesses, if any, at least twice
every year to ensure the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk management and
internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy and a system on anti-
fraud for employees and third parties to raise concerns in confidence, which complied
with the recommended best practice in the Code. In 2018, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that had material effect on
the Group's financial statements and overall operations.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been conducted and considered that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in 2018 are effective and adequate and the
Company had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effective of risk management
and internal controls systems of the Group. However, investors and shareholders are
reminded that the systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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REPORT OF
ERERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of Operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segment is set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 67.

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
US$5,000.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018, comprising share
premium reserve of US$109,103,000 that is subject to the regulation of Section 34 of
the Cayman Islands Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company
and accumulated losses of US$60,615,000, totaling US$48,488,000 net are available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders.

Equity Linked Agreements — Share Options Granted to Directors
and Employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year are set out in Note
25 of the consolidated financial statements and “The Share Option Scheme” section
contained in this Report of the Directors. All the share options granted during the year
are with vesting conditions, there was no share issued for the year ended 31 December
2018 in respect of share options granted in 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DlRECTORS(contmued)

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years ended 31 December is set out on page 177.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Company's Listed Shares
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed shares by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other
emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors with reference to
directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. In
addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
annually.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report were there any
permitted indemnity provisions in force for the benefit of any of the Directors of the
Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or controlling
shareholders of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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The Share Option Scheme Bk EsD

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”) at the RRAAR201I3FSA88RTHREBEARE
annual general meeting held on 28 May 2013. Details can be referred to Note 25 to the EHM—FRETE(2013EREE)) - 7F

consolidated financial statements on pages 163 to 167 of this Annual Report. BRI 2ERERFI3E16/ENEGESTHERE
P EE25
Valuation of share options BREEE

The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model to value the share options granted. AARFEBE -_HIEEAAECEREBERED
Details of the key parameters used in the Model and the corresponding fair values BE- AFEEALBEANTEZX=ZHERY
of the share options granted during the year should be referred to Note 25(a) to the EZERENBREZATEFBEL2R8 G460
consolidated financial statements. The details of the share options granted to the R M sE25(a) - 2018 2017 F RN F T

respective parties during 2018 and 2017 are as follows: ATHEREFBOT

2018 2017
Number Value Number Value
(in thousand units) US$'000 (in thousand units) US$'000
gE BE gz BE
(AT 5t) TEn (LA FAhz7T) TER
Leung Heung Ying 2EHE 800 1 800 12
Sheu Wei Fu TR 800 1 800 12
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph PN 800 1 800 12
Subtotal for Directors EE2HS 2,400 2 2,400 36
Senior management aRERE - - - -
Total @cr 2,400 2 2,400 36
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS contnceg
EECREH

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 under the 2013 Share R2018F12A31H R 2013 R ET &Rt 2

Option Scheme are as follows: HERENFBEET
Number of share options (in thousand units) Bxercise period
BREHA (AT s e
Lapsed/
Held on Granted Exercised Forfeited Held on
1 January during during during 31 December Evercise price
08 the year the year the year 08 HKS
Name of Directors R8E Ef ER ER R8E L Grant dae Begins fnds
E24B 181855 BRY B BH¥/HE NANARE AT fHiAH Rt &R
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHAES
Leung Heung Ying 800 - - - 800 0305 30 September 2016 3 October 2017 30 September 2019
PERS W6F9A0E  N7EI0A3E  019E9A30A
800 - - - 800 0370 9 October 2017 2 October 2018 30 September 2020
N7E10A98  N1BE10A2E8  NEIANA
- 800 - - 800 025 9 October 2018 2 October 2019 30 September 2021
WIBE10A98 019810428 201E9A30A
1,600 800 - - 2400
Sheu Wei fu 800 - - (800) - 0315 2 October 2015 3 October 2016 28 September 2018
SEX NHE0A2E  N16E10A3E8 2018297 28R
800 - - - 800 0305 30 September 2016 3 0ctober 2017 30 September 2019
W6FIANE  WTEI0A3E  19E9A30A
800 - - - 800 0370 9 October 2017 2 October 2018 30 September 2020
N7E0AIE  N1BE10A2E  NNEIANA
- 800 - - 800 025 9 October 2018 2 October 2019 30 September 2021
NIBE10A98 019810428 201E9A30A
2400 800 - (800) 2400
YiuTin Chong, Joseph 800 - - (800) - 0315 2 October 2015 3 October 2016 28 September 2018
x NHE0A2E 01651073 2018597 28R
800 - - - 800 0305 30 September 2016 3 0ctober 2017 30 September 2019
WEEIANE  WTEI0A3E  9E9A30A
800 - - - 800 0310 9 October 2017 20ctober 2018 30 September 2020
N7E0AIE  N1BE10A28  NNEIANA
- 800 - - 800 0254 9 October 2018 20ctober 2019 30 September 2021
NIBEI0AIE 019810728 201E9A30A
2400 800 - (800) 2400
Subtotal
it 6400 200 - (1600 10

Closing price of the Company’s securities immediately before the grant date of 9 SZERLEBE2018F10B9B8 AT A D A FH M
October 2018 was HK$0.250. B A02508 7T

al) Limited  Annual Report 2018




Number of share options (in thousand units) Bxercie period
BRERE (AT 8
Lapsed/
Held on Granted Exercised Forfeited Held on
1 January during during during 31 December Evercise price
08 the year the year the year 08 HKS
Name of Directors HangE ER ER ER LK ke Grant date Begins fnds
E24B 181855 BRE BAE CHE/HE NANAKA AT KRS il g%
Executive Directors
YrES
Yeh Tsugi Chi 2500 - - (1500) 1,000 0369 11 Janvary 2016 2 April 2018 31 March 2000
Egn WEFIANE  018F4A28  N0FIANAE
2500 - - (1500) 1,000 0.369 2 January 2019 31 December 2020
W19%1828 200%12A318
2500 - - - 2500 0389 1 Aprl 2019 31 March 2001
W9E4F1E NEIANA
2500 - - - 2500 0369 2January 2020 31 December 2021
NNF1R28 0NE12A318
10000 - = (3000) 7,000
Lo Wai Ming 3000 - - (3,000) - 0305 30 September 2016 2 hpril 2018 31 March 2020
ERH WIEFIANE  0I8F4A28  NNFIANE
3000 - - - 3000 0305 1 Aprl 2019 31 March 2001
N9F4F1E NEIANA
6,000 - = (3000) 3000
Subtotal 16,000 - = (6,000) 10000
it
Ex-directors 800 - - (800) - 0315 2 0ctober 2015 30ctober 2016 28 September 2018
HES WHE10A28 016510438 2018597288
Subtotal 800 - - (800) -
it
Senior management & others 950 - - (980) - 0.3% 9 October 2014 3 October 2016 28 September 2018
EREEERAM WI4E10A9E 016510438 2018594288
0 - (100) (250) - 0309 30 March 2015 1 Aprl 2016 30 March 2018
NHE3ANE  0I6E4A1E 20I8EIANA
10 - - - 100 0309 30 March 2015 3 April 2017 29March 2019
WHFIANE  WTFLAIE M9FIANE
500 - (300) (200) - 0315 2 October 2015 3 October 2016 28 September 2018
N5F10A28  M6E0A3E  018FIA28H
500 - (300) - 0 0315 2 October 2015 20ctober 2017 30 September 2019
NHE0A28  W7E10A28 2019597308
3000 - = (1,740) 1260 0305 30 September 2016 2 April 2018 31 March 2000
WBEIANE  WIBELA2E  WNEIANE
3000 - - - 3000 0305 1 Aprl 2019 31 March 2021
WOF4AIE WNEIANE
Subtotal 8400 - (700) (3140) 4560
it
Total
Eh) 31600 2400 (T00) (11,540) 2760
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REPORT OF THE DlRECTORS(contmued)
B8 it

The Group’s Environmental Policies and Performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high standard of corporate
social responsibility is essential for building up a good corporate and social relationship
and motivating staff and creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed
to contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community in which we
conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The Group's Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for 2018 will be published on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com.

Relationships with Employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes in communicating with
staff and giving them training and career development opportunities. It also recognizes
good performance. It provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve
work-life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to
prevailing market terms and individual's qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant
factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance and performance related bonus. Share options may
also be granted to eligible employees of the Group.

Relationships with Key Customers and Suppliers

The Group has maintained a good and long-term relationship with major customers and
suppliers. The Group has well-established channels to encourage communication with
customers to resolve any issues arising and achieve excellence in all phases of the
Group’s business. With regard to suppliers, through collaborating with them to manage
risk and promote business ethics and integrity, the Group aims to increase our positive
impact and implement further compliance in our supply chains.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report were:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Rongxin

Dr. Li Jun

Mr. Ma Yuchuan (appointed on 14 March 2018)
Mr. Zhao Guiwu (resigned on 14 March 2018)

Executive Directors
Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi
Mr. Lo Wai Ming

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Li Rongxin,
Mr. Lo Wai Ming and Mr. Sheu Wei Fu will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Messrs. Leung Heung Ying, Sheu Wei Fu and Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company and their service contracts were renewed in
2018 for a term expiring on 30 June 2019.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on pages 17
to 23 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE DlRECTORS(contmued)
B8 it

Directors’ Interests

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

EFHER

R2018F12A3NE  EEERTREHRNEA
AREEBZE(EERES LBEHH) K
RBERD T EEELCRIBESFOEXVE S
MEREARRIAFEMNEL LML HAR
BIMBETAEZSETESRRINRETRA
EARARBRANEERRRMOT

Ordinary shares in the Company as at 31 December 2018

R2018F12ANBAAREER

% of the issued
share capital of
the Company
L YN
Position Shares  Share Options' Total CETRE
BEMR ) BREY Bt BOl
Independent Non-executive Directors B Y FHTES
LEUNG Heung Ying 2EH long #826 - 2,400,000 2,400,000 0.10%
SHEU Wei Fu TR long #%3 - 2,400,000 2,400,000 0.10%
YIU Tin Chong, Joseph R long 1% 2,000,000 2,400,000 4,400,000 0.18%
Non-executive Directors E(HBTES
Ll Jun Fig long 1% - - - -
LI Rongxin TR long #Em - - - -
Ma Yuchuan SEN long 1% - - - -
ZHAO Guiwu HER long 1% - - - -
Executive Directors HTES
YEH Tsuei Chi EE5 long 1% 1,902,000 7,000,0001 8,902,000 0.36%
L0 Wai Ming [ &8 long ## 33572179 3,000,000 36,572,179 147%
Notes: Wi &t -

(i) Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more details on pages 47 to 49.

(ii) 1,902,000 Shares of the Company awarded to Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi (“Dr. Yeh”) on 28 March 2018 are
subject to vesting conditions. The shares have not vested as at 31 December 2018 and also the date of
this Annual Report.

(iii) Share options of the Company granted to Dr. Yeh on 11 January 2016 are subject to vesting of which 2

million share options have been vested during the year and accordingly the remaining 5 million options
are not exercisable as at 31 December 2018 and also the date of this Annual Report.

(iv) The shares and share options are subject to an acting-in-concert agreement between Huada and Dr.
Yeh. More details can be referred to under the subject “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests” on page 53.
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors and Chief Executive
Officer (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interests in,
or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company
and its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Lo Wai Ming (“Mr. Lo"), Executive Director of the Company and a member of senior
management of the Group, through investment vehicles under his control invested
in BJ-LED, an associated company of the Group. Mr. Lo declared that his percentage
ownership in BJ-LED as at 31 December 2018 was 11.5% (2017: 11.5%).

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or its associated corporation a party to any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company's issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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RAEE N — R e R AIBJ-LED - & 5t £ B i
fh 720184 12 A 31 B # A BJ-LED 11.5% (2017 :
11.5%) °
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Ordinary shares in the Company as at 31 December 2018

R2018F12ANB AN R EER

Number of % of the issued
Number of ~ share options share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Position shares held held Total  of the Company
EERF
Fii % Fi % EROTRA
KR&® L) BHEMRR BRH#E BREZE @t B
Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.47%
FALEREARAT EREAA B
China Electronics Corporation Interest of controlled corporation  Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.47%
THEEFESEXSEARLAA HMESNZENER Ba
Note: i
(i) CEC is a state-owned information technology conglomerate under the administration of the central i) FEEFE—KEZNER A B RN E
government of the People’s Republic of China. Huada is a wholly owned subsidiary of CEC. EEFEERNPEER EAZFEHEFH 2 EF
RA]e
(ii) Subject to an acting-in-concert agreement between Huada and Dr. Yeh as announced on 2 February (ii) kE2016F2/28 —HEXBEE + FZT8) —HiT

2016, Dr. Yeh is taken to be interested in 8,902,000 shares/share options of the Company (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), being interests under the share awards and share options granted
to him, and these represent approximately 0.36% of the issued share capital in the Company as at
31 December 2018. During the year, 2 million of the said share options have been vested. The said
shares and the remaining 5 million share options have not vested and, accordingly are not exercisable
as at 31 December 2018. Upon the full vesting and exercise of these shares and share options, Dr.
Yeh and Huada will together hold an aggregate of 714,968,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 28.83% of the then issued share capital of the Company (on the assumption that no
further shares will be issued or repurchased by the Company).

BAWGE RELEESRYE KO EXVE TR
HEAREI2000 K0, HERE GRERT K
ZRERORERE R2018F12A31 415K 2 52
BITRA036% - ZBK T .2 ZE K17 K FEIRIE 14
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REPORT OF THE DlRECTORS(contmued)

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no other persons (other than
the Directors) were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

ﬁ?tﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬁ?%?\“ﬁ“%%iﬂﬂﬂﬁ'*EHJ%

FERBMERIEDBRARNFANETEHEFNE
uﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁuaﬁ‘ BEELMAT(ZESHRINERR
RElRO REERDOERIXE -

BEEaD
FAREETARGEARARALBRAME
ERHEBHERRITROEH -

TEAERRER
AEBTEREHREFEEAFENRER
HEBRHLMT :

Purchases HE

— the largest supplier —RAEES

— five largest suppliers combined ~ARKHEREET
Sales HE

— the largest customer —“RAEP

— five largest customers combined - hAAREFAF

15%
55%

15%
56%

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their associates or
any shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had any interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

Discloseable Transactions

Except as disclosed under the following heading “Related parties and connected

transactions”, the Company did not conduct any transaction which constituted a

discloseable transaction under the Listing Rules during the year.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 July 2018.
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Related Parties and Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into certain transactions
with related parties as defined under the applicable accounting standards, which
include transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.
Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or are ongoing
for which relevant announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

Beijing Huada Empyrean Software Co., Ltd. (“"HES"), an indirect subsidiary of CEC — in
connection with the renewal of the grant of the License to the Group pursuant to the
license renewal agreements signed on 20 November 2017 for a two years' term from 30
October 2017 to 29 October 2019.

Continuing connected transactions

(@)  Panda-LCD, an associate of CEC — the sales of products by the Group to Panda-
LCD, a renewed continuing connected transactions for years 2018 to 2020 as
approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29
December 2017.

(b)  Panda-FPD, an associate of CEC — the sales of products by the Group to Panda-
FPD, a continuing connected transactions for years 2018 to 2020 as approved
by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29 December
2017.

(c)  On 17 July 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with CEACI under which
CEACI would purchase IC and driver products from the Group for the years 2018
to 2020 as approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 29 August 2018.

The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected transaction have been
reviewed by independent non-executive directors of the Company. The independent non-
executive directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions entered into
are (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from independent third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole; and (d) within the annual cap.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS contnceg
BEECHEG

N

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together with the Group's
Corporate Audit Section and Audit Committee, have conducted annual reviews of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018,
and were satisfied that the Group's continuing connected transactions during 2018 have
complied with the Listing Rules requirement in all respects.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed for the
year ended 31 December 2018. A copy of the independent assurance report has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company's issued shares as at 13 March 2019.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Sustained losses over the previous years might be a liquidity risk to the Company's
going concern position. Principal uncertainty remains on the achievement of business
plans and the outcome of new projects and products launched in the market. Based
on the financial projections for the next three years, the risk on going concern is still
remote and the uncertainty of revenue growth is manageable.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with all the
applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules (“Appendix 14”). To maintain high standards of corporate
governance, the Company has adopted the recommended best practices in Appendix 14
where appropriate.
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Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities transactions by Directors
and relevant employees on no less exacting terms than the required standard set out
in the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they have been in
compliance with such guidelines during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has complied, in all material respects, with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Business Review

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as required by Schedule 5 to
the new Companies Ordinance are set out on pages 10 to 16 of this Annual Report. The
business review forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Independent Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
audited by Ernst & Young who retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
) 3 1% SAD R 5

EY::

To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 176, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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|NDEPE\NDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ontine
oRVR A T

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
other intangible assets were US$2.3 million and US$13.3 million,
respectively, which in aggregate represented 19.8% of the Group's
net assets.

Impairment assessment is performed by assessing the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units or group of cash-generating
units to which the goodwill and other intangible assets relate.
The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i)
the magnitude of the carrying amounts involved; and (ii) significant
estimates involved in the estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill and other intangible assets are
allocated, including, among others, expected future cash flows and
discount rates.

The Group's accounting policies, disclosures of estimation uncertainty
and impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets
are included in notes 2.4, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group had inventories with carrying amount of US$32.7 million
as at 31 December 2018, which represented 41.3% of the Group's net
assets. The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories to determine if any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value is required after considering the aged analyses of
inventories, relevant historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires management to
make significant judgements and estimates based on expectation

about future market conditions.

The related disclosure of estimation uncertainty is included in note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.
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We assessed the key assumptions used in management's cash
flow projections for impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangible assets, including, among others, budgeted revenue growth
rates, budgeted gross profit margin and discount rates, taking into
consideration the historical results, market conditions and trends and
reliability of previous projections. We have also evaluated the sensitivity
of management estimates and assumptions used in the cash flow
projections.

In addition, we involved our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodology and the discount rates adopted in the value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. We also assessed the adequacy
of disclosures in connection with the impairment assessment of goodwill
and other intangible assets.

We evaluated management’s assessment of whether the estimated net
realisable values of inventories declined below their carrying amounts.
Our procedures included understanding and assessing the Group's
processes over identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excessive and other potentially impaired inventory items for which
their net realisable values might decline below their carrying amounts;
evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by the Group
in determining the net realisable values of inventories; and assessing
the write-down of inventories required by testing the ageing analyses of
inventories, sales made and materials used subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and historical sales and usage reports.
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law

or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

13 March 2019

64

Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018



ERARFHAGEMERERRORED
e BERERMAMNAMEN URMAEENBTEF BENLFY EEEANEHNERMERER

e TEEEMRACHBREMBREMRFELEHBAMERARENGENL -

s HEERARALKLEHERMBENFLEAR REMEDNENEE BRERAFHEESHLABRAAENEART
HETE 1L fE T A A %ﬁﬁ BERENRELERNELEARE -WREMARBAGFEERTHEEL AV EEZHM
BRETRFEAEISHAMERERTNERANE - REARNBEAR AAMAREZRFERESRL - RMNE
MEERNGZEMBEALAREORARE -AM ARFELBRIELEY EXRETERSELE -

o FHEXAMBEHANEBRIBRIN BBNAD BEEE UKGEAMBBRESTFAERRRZMER-

e 3 ERERNERIXBIINYBELERRR BENEFEE UEHKRAMBBREXREAL -RMAE &
EEANIA EENAT RMAAFFELARZHAE-

BREMEEN HAMAEERZEQRBTAANBHER SR EXEAERE QEAMERT P AL A AFEH
#) E fo] E KRG -

BMEMNECZEGRIERA SHARMENAAMBIMNEEREERER YRMMERAITRAEMKAREY
ERMBUMORAEREANEMER  AREEAOBERT HEOHEEE-

REELZZEQREANERT AMAECHLERHAHNGAMBRRNEAZAER AMBRARESFEH  RAAERK
BMBEPHLELER RIEZFERATAFLAAREEL TR AEBKFROBAT NRAERAERMBEDE
BRERERNABRRBBEANARNG AARETEERETFEBLER -

HAABYUREMBENEFAEABAREI &

RXEHAERR
BESI A
EETRAXEBIN
RIERE2

—E-nE=A+=A

- SR 0BEFR



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRE

67 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

68 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

69 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

70 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Al CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

73 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

73 1 General information

74 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

127 3 Financial risk management and fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments

136 4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

139 5  Segment information and disaggregation of revenue

142 6  Loss before tax

142 7 Other income and gains — net

143 8 Finance income — net

143 9 Five highest paid employees

144 10  Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

146 11 Income tax

147 12 Loss per share

147 13 Dividend

148 14 Intangible assets

150 15 Property, plant and equipment

151 16 Business combinations

155 17 Investments in associates

156 18  Subsidiaries

157 19 Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments

158 20  Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

158 21 Inventories

159 22 Trade and other receivables

162 23 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

162 24 Issued capital

163 25  Equity compensation scheme

168 26 Reserves

168 27  Deferred tax liability

169 28  Trade and other payables

169 29  Interest-bearing bank borrowings

170 30 Banking facilities

170 31 Note to consolidated cash flow statement

170 32 Commitments

171 33  Financial instruments by category

173 34  Related parties transactions

175 35  Statement of financial position and reserves of the Company

176 36  Approval of consolidated financial statements

66 Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018

RERER

REREKRARRE
me RN E
RERE2DX
GRERERER
REMBERME
—RER

xaﬁﬁﬁﬁx

BHERERE  RYEERRAFEER

BRI HE R
DEMERRKBEEESE
BRELATE B

H e A & ez — %
BERA—FHE
hEsmgMES
EERTREHENS
PG %t

FhRER

% &

BEEE

ME - BE RBE
EBE
REERRRNIKE
o= NG

BRATEEFAELMZEARZNRERE/

ARHERE

RehReEBYREHRTER

FE
JE WK T L A & Y 3K

BRBENRBRATEENMKEE

BT A

P& 2 5 5R B AT &
1
ERMERAE

J& 1 58 B £ b JE A 3K
RITETBER
RITEE
FEBERERME
A

SR TARER
BEL X5
ARAHMBARRE K E

eV BRREL



OL

0 N/

CONS

FEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B Z2018F12H31HIFFE
2018 2017
Note US$'000 Us$000
Bt & TER FTEL
Revenue HEZ 5 98,148 82,464
Cost of sales FER-3 7N (69,980) (53,148)
Gross profit EH 28,168 29,316
Research and development costs T 28 I % R AR (31,482) (34,530)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (4,043) (3,265)
Administrative expenses THRRX (13,154) (11,910)
Other income and gains — net Hip WA R~ F58 7 4,551 6,127
(15,960) (14,262)
Finance income — net HEWMA-FE 8 1,970 3,938
(13,990) (10,324)
Share of profits of associates FHEEATEF 17 222 22
Loss before tax el EE 6 (13,768) (10,302)
Income tax expense IRCE s 11 = (19)
Loss for the year KEEER (13,768) (10,321)
Attributable to: e {5
— Owners of the parent - WNEIE F =N (13,677) (10,233)
— Non-controlling interests —FEIE R (91) (88)
(13,768) (10,321)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ARAIEBERZFAA
equity holders of the parent: R ERERE:
(expressed in US cent per share) (AEM 8RE5) 12
— Basic —-EK (0.55) (0.41)
— Diluted — s (0.55) (0.41)

The notes on pages 73 to 176 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HerEBRARR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE2018%12 831 A1t 5 &
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000
TEn TErx
Loss for the year rEEEE (13,768) (10,321)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hi2mEkA/ (EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be RAZBEE EHe2@E
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: WA/ (Ei8)
BEMPBEEREE:
— Exchange difference arising on translation of —-REBIEBRESE
foreign operations ZERER 393 (88)
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEE2HEBELE (13,375) (10,409)
Attributable to: fE1h
— Owners of the parent B WNGIE ¥ =N (13,283) (10,324)
— Non-controlling interests T (92) (85)
(13,375) (10,409)

The notes on pages 73 to 176 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF FINAN‘ “

Fe BB R

As at 31 December 2018
R20184F 1231 H

2018 2017
Note US$'000 US$'000
Bt & TER TErx
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Intangible assets EBEREE 14 15,609 19,841
Property, plant and equipment ME- BENEE 15 5,036 5,084
Investments in associates REEE RAI IR E 17 737 515
Equity investment designated at fair value BRAFBEGTAEM
through other comprehensive income PEHRENRERE 19 839 -
Available-for-sale investments Gl Hj ERE 19 = 2,206
Prepayments and deposits SEENE S & HiA 22 525 180
Financial assets at fair value through BBERNRBEAF
profit or loss BENMBEE 23 467 788
Total non-current assets FEMEEELF 23,213 28,614
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 21 32,654 20,527
Trade and other receivables JE U 3 N H M JE W 3k 22 28,838 21,231
Financial assets at fair value through B Té! mIA R AT
profit or loss BEENVBEE 23 8,780 22,370
Pledged bank deposit EERORITER 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents RBehkBReFEY 20 13,395 23,347
Total current assets MEE E B 83,797 87,605
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables JE 5T 30 K E b FE S FR 28 26,912 23,332
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITFFBER 29 198 92
Deferred income EEM A 405 271
Tax payables JE (< 73X 152 143
Total current liabilities REEEE 21,667 23,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 56,130 63,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AE¥ERTHAR 79,343 92,381
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *k¥REE f§
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFFEER 29 = 207
Deferred tax liability BEMEHAR 27 313 366
Total non-current liabilities FnBEELEs 313 573
Net assets EEZEE 79,030 91,808
EQUITY B &
Equity attributable to owners of the parent A2 FHEE AEGER
Issued capital BETRA 24 31,967 31,958
Reserves HE 26 46,493 59,188
78,460 91,146
Non-controlling interests FERER 570 662
Total equity MRS 79,030 91,808

The notes on pages 73 to 176 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B Z2018F12H31H I FJE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARRRERAARE
Equity
Issued Exchange - compensation Non-
capital Share Merger  fluctuation reserve  Fair value Other ~ Accumulated controlling Total
BET  premim Tesenve esene  RAER Teserve Teserve losses Total interests equity
ke REEE AOEE EXEE SHEE LTEERE HUEE  ZHEA B FEREE  4BE
Note USSO0  Ussooo  Uss oo USS 000 USO0  USSOo0  USSooo  USSom LSS0 USSOD  USSONO
W fxn T FTEr TEr TR TEn fEn fEn i i TEn
A1 Janaary 2017 RMTETR1R 3196 83400 208 (] 173 - JE! (33750 10099 - 100999
Loss for the year EmgE - - - - - - — (03 (02 o o3
Other comprehiensive ncore EREHZENA:
for th year:
-behenge difeencesarsngon~~ ~HEEHEREE
transation offoeign operatons EEREE — - - i - - - - 1) J ]
Total comprehensive loss EnREER
forthe ear g3 - - - o) - - — om0 B 049
Equity-setled share option REgEHH
arrangements b - - - - 39 - - - 39 - 39
Brercise of share options TEERE U ki Jii - - - - - - 102 - 10
Roquistion of a subsidary hE-ERERR 16 - - - - - - - - - W W
At 31 December 2017 RATENANA 31,958 83410 208 (303) 17,69 - 30 (43,983) 91,146 662 91,808
At 31 December 2017 RATENANA 31,958 83410 208 (303) 17,6% - 30 (43,983) 91,146 662 91,808
Fffet of adoption o HKFRS 9 AMHmRSImEE 0 - = = = = )] = (140) 557 = 557
At January 2018 RBEIA1E
[retated] (&) 31,958 83410 208 (303) 17,6% 697 30 (44123) 91,703 662 92,365
Loss for th year ERNER - - - - - - - (1367) (1367) (o) (13,768)
Othercomprehensive ncome EREMEENA:
for the year:
-Enhenge dfeencesaisngn~ —AEEHERBE
translation of foreign operations EVERER - - - M - - - - kL] 1] k!
Total comprehensive incomefloss) ERZARANEE)
for the year @ - - - 3 - - - (1367) (13.263) (%) (13375)
Fouiyseted share opton RrgsgH
aangements P - - - - 12 - - - 12 - 12
Brercise o share options RERE ] 9 19 — = = = = = i) = i
31 Decenter 208 HUBEIAYE o ner wooum W B¢ ERF U

The notes on pages 73 to 176 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
EBEIBENMIRESGREUBRROEKITH -

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$46,493,000 (2017: US$59,188,000) in the consolidated statement of financial positions.
¥ ZEFE RS [ 546,493,000% T (2017 « 59,188,000% 7T) B 1 47 & BT B R & o
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BeRenER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE20184 12831 A1k F &
2018 2017
Note US$'000 Us$000
i TER TErx
Cash flows from operating activities REFTHHERE
Loss before tax BrBiAlE B (13,768) (10,302)
Adjustments for: .
Finance costs 12 B R 8 4 4
Share of profits of associates JEIEHZE AR AR 17 (222) (22)
Interest income F B U A 8 (361) (814)
Dividend income % B A 8 (122) (347)
Fair value gain on FVTPL, net BREBRURBRAF
EEMNATFER
A H (1.491) (2,781)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BER 7
plant and equipment B0l ¢ (117) (24)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BEABHEGFED 6
inventories B s 5,920 3,454
Depreciation wE 6 1,750 1,284
Amortization of intangible assets BREEEH 6 4,201 3,612
Equity-settled share option expenses % 7 4 2 i B 6 12 369
(4,194) (5,567)
Increase in inventories FEEm (18,047) (10,915)
Increase in trade and other receivables, JE R T L fth FE W 5K 38 0
prepayments and deposits (8,234) (2,974)
Increase in trade and other payables JE {51 3R R KL fib 15 3032 00 319 9,237
Cash used in operations KEFHNE S (26,756) (10,219)
Overseas income tax paid BN BINTER (44) (62)
Interest paid on interest-bearing bank borrowings T R1TEtE EH 2 F & (4) (4)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHERANREFE (26,804) (10,285)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHZEERE
Purchases of intangible assets RBEEBFVEAE 14 = (2,500)
Purchases of items of property, BEVE BELLZE 15
plant and equipment (1,933) (3,017)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, BAMBEAR - 16
net of cash acquired NKEANE S - (3,967)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, LEME BMENE
plant and equipment 154 103
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERBEZRIARBRAF
at fair value through profit or loss EENMBEENRE 17,603 17,482
Decrease in fixed bank deposits FHSRTERR D - 727
Interest received 2 YA B 361 814
Dividend received B 8 122 347
Net cash from investing activities RETBELENESFE 16,307 9,989

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT e

,\\/T\/\f/gu i //|LE%§ )

2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000
TExn TErx
Cash flows from financing activities MEZTBH2RHERE
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowing EBEBRITAEBER (101) (67)
Proceeds from exercise of share options BREETENER 28 102
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities METBHELE WERAH
S Rem® B
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeRBReFBYWFRD (10,570) (261)
Cash and cash equivalents FUNBRERASEEY
at beginning of year 23,347 23,830
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EREH I FE B8 618 (222)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRASRESEEY 13,395 23,347
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRBRLESEYN
cash equivalents: EER DA
— Bank balances and cash -RTEHRRERES 13,395 23,347

The notes on pages 73 to 176 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are fabless
semiconductor companies specializing in the design, development and sales of
integrated circuits (“IC") products and system solutions that enable a wide range
of display applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors, notebooks
and other smart devices, including wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances, etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 November 2003 as
an exempted company with limited liability under Cap.22, the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is P.0. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman
KY1-1001, Cayman Islands and the address of its principal office in Hong Kong
is 6/F., No. 3 Science Park East Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries
Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for the particulars of the
Company's principal subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues

o A

VN

74

B 75 R M o)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

21

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets which have been measured
at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars (“US$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

21

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. *E

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first

Hﬁ fjj #&% MT u]‘: &)

time for the current year's financial statements:

BEHBREE
22 EBHEBRRERED

AEBERAFEZHBERRER

RWMATHATREET Z2BERS

wEEEA

Amendments to HKFRS 2
EREVBREERFE2R 2BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 4
ERTBREEREAR 2BF]
HKFRS 9
ERTBHREEREIR

HKFRS 15
BB RE LA F155%

Amendments to HKFRS 15

EREMBRELENFISR ZEF

Amendments to HKAS 40
EREGHERELOR 21EFT

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
EEEBRYEHREREZED)
-BRRBELSR

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
2014 £2016F 3 H 0 F [ S

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

UEDRERZINRR 2N ERTE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

RABERBRELNFARRBRANK -~ URAETEUBRS

FIOREMTA

Financial Instruments

SRMIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

EFRAHNE

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

BEEAVMBREEUNFTBREFAONS

Transfers of Investment Property

BRREME
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

NEZXHRENRE

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
BERNBRELENEIRRBEB LI ENE8HR 2B

3
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4, the amendments to HKAS 40 and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant

to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the

impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled
to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are
modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no material impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group as the Group has no share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues
SeRBREM T

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEENBRRBE®
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 22 EHBREREZTEH (9
(b)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial (b)) BFEMBRKEELFIR S A
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods I A R2018F1R18 8 2 %
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three Hih v FEHRABRREAS
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification STEBIENHRE I A BR
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. LitE AHeMIAESHE

BERZHE=ZEAE: DR
RitE R RE R -

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments against the RNEBELEE KX E2018F1A
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the THEROBEREHR Bt
comparative information was not restated and continues to be reported E BTN AE B @ B £3959% 5
under HKAS 39. mAEY -

Classification and measurement SENGE

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS 9 on UTERENENE BT BREE
the consolidated statement of financial position, including the effect of BIEIENGEEM BN RNTE
replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9's BENE BB RS EREIR E’]
expected credit losses (“ECLs"). BHEEEBR(ECL)BRREES

STERENREELEEERBNE

Hy e
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 and the

balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

2. FTEEHRREEH
22 EHBRRESEEH
BEFSSHENENRNERE
HEEEBMBREERFIERN
2018F1 A 1B &z HERWMT

HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BAEHEY BN BREES
ENFHE F9HiE
ECL
Note Category Amount - Reclassfcation Re-measurement  BAEE Amount Category
fitsr Ehl £8 BHOE  ENiE BE £8 B
US§ 000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US$'000
Tin Tin FEL TR Tixn
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale investments AT HERE N/A
i AFS! 2,06 (2,206 - - - TER
Financial assets included in [ e 9 &S T
trade and other receivables ANNLBEE ()i L& 19790 (142) - (140) 19,508 AC?
Deposits HEA L8R 128 - - - 128 AC?
Financial assets at fair value BEERNRE
through profitor loss ATEEN
LREE i FUTRL! 23,158 2,06 - - 75,364 FVTRLY
Equity investment designated BATEEFA
at fai value through other Eh2ENE N/A
comprehensive income NRERE i) TEA - 1Y 697 - 89 FVOC
Pledged hark deposit BERNBRAER L8R 130 - - - kil AC?
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEY L8R 8347 - - - 8347 AC?
68759 - 597 (0 636
Financial liablities SRER
Financial liabilities included in B 30 IR 1 A
trade and other payables TRNERERE AC? 19423 - - - 19423 AC?
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R 173t B E ACY % - - - 9 AC?
1972 - - -

LN =

AFS: Available-for-sale investments
L&R: Loans and receivables

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost

FVTPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

1. ARSI ERE
2 L&R : B X FIfE N 31
3, AC: RBHKAHENTREEX

BEE

4, FVTPL : 8 18 18 2 W | B 22 F (B (G /Y &
BEE

5. FVOC! - 12 2 F (B {E & A B fth 2 BT 7
HE@EE
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NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
A BRI

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2. FEENRREEH

22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 22 BEHBRREZSEH B

Classification and measurement (continued) FENFEE)

Notes: =X

(i) The gross carrying amount of the trade receivables under the column "HKAS 39 (i) [EREAERENFFELEIWE
measurement — Amount” represents the amount after adjustments for the adoption of TR A REEEEIERNEBE
HKFRS 15 but before the measurement of ECLS. BHEEAE ISR EEEGTERSE

EERIA %A -

(ii) The Group has classified its investments in unlisted shares previously classified as (i) AEBREERA B AR HELERERN
available-for-sale investments as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as FFTRERE SEHEBBEZRU
these investments are equity investments. KBNFEENTEEE At EK

BERRERE -

(iii) The Group has classified its investment in a club debenture previously as financial (iii) REBEEOHELRKEHEMEK
assets at amortised cost included in other receivables and reclassified it as equity HREBEA AT EN T REE &
investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive income in HKFRS 9. BB EER EIFEF B AT
Such measurement was measured at fair value as at 1 January 2018 with fair value NFEEFAEMDEHRZERER
changes recognised in the fair value reserve of the statement of changes in equity. BoRI018FIAITH ZHEREZLNF

BEIGE AFEEZHREZE
KPR TFERBENER

Impairment B

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening impairment TERBEBEGHEAEIR T

allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL allowances under HKFRS 9. Further SRERBREEN GRS EAUSR

details are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. SRTMEREEERRBETY
RoE—TFBERMBRRM 22
BRE-
Impairment
allowances under ECL allowance
HKAS 39 at under HKFRS 9 at
31 December 2017 Re-measurement 1 January 2018
20184
R 2017 F 1TH1H
12A318 REBWE
BEBE: BEED
% Bl % 39 5% 28955 1 78 A1
B 1B B 1B B FEBBEREE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
Trade and other receivables JE R I L SR - 140 140
Deposits HEA - - -
— 140 140
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(c)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The relevant disclosures are included
in note 5 to the financial statements. As a result of the application
of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting policy
with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption. Under this method, the standard can be
applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or
only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The Group
has elected to apply the standards to contracts that were not
completed as at 1 January 2018. The comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 18 and
related interpretations as appropriate.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line
item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the adoption of

FERHHRBED

22 EHBRRERER ()
ATEINGRMEBMHRE LS
165 1% & 1681 1 % 78 B R2018%F

HKFRS 15: TATRXZENSH:

Increase/(decrease)

o,/ (e )

Liabilities Note US$'000

=R L= FET
Provision for rebates included in trade and &+ A J& < % N2 £ 1 & {5 3k 70 9 [B1 40 B 48

other payables (i) (537)
Refund liabilities included in trade and ARSI EREMENSTRPNEREE

other payables (i) 537

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line
item was affected as at 31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact on consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and on the Group's operating, investing and financing cash flows.
The first column shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the
second column shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS 15
not been adopted:

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018:

ATEINRREERBREELSE
155} 18 & [E B 7% R R 72 B R 20184F
NANEXTENTR -KANER
B RERAEIFEEARERER
BAEZERABRIHARENE
2 RENBMERSREYBFE -
F-RBETRBETERBHREER
FHRLENEH F_WBETAK
RMBERHEREENFRNE
B

M2018F12 A3 A MR A B KR
=

Amounts prepared under

HKFRS 15 Previous HKFRS  Increase/(decrease)

AEAGEE

BREERG RBEEE
HEBEGE  MBREEMN B0 08

Note Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
B 5F FET FET FET
Provision for rebates included &+ A JE {5 5% 2 E fib
in trade and other payables BERZOEMEE () - 1,753 (1,753)
Refund liabilities included TABEMRREM
in trade and other payables ENZHRZEE (i) 1,753 - 1,753
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the reason for

the changes in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 2018 are described below:

Note:
(i)

Volume rebates

The Group provides volume rebates to certain of its customers on
specified products purchased by these customers once the quantity
of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold
specified in the contract. Prior to adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
estimated the expected volume rebates using the probability-
weighted average amount of rebates approach and included a
provision for rebates in trade and other payables.

Under HKFRS 15, volume rebates give rise to variable
consideration. To estimate the variable consideration to which it
will be entitled, the Group applied the ‘most likely amount method’
as the contracts offer fixed amount of rebates for a single volume
threshold for each particular product. The Group then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised refund liabilities
under trade and other payables for the expected future rebates
and derecognised the provision for rebates under trade and other
payables of US$537,000 as at 1 January 2018. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 did not result in any impact on the opening balance
of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 as the estimation
of variable considerations and application of constraint are not
materially different from the provision estimation under HKAS 18.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
refund liabilities of US$1,753,000 under other payables.

2.

EESH

22 EHBRRREZED D
201841 A1 R & 3 B £ & 2018
FNANAEARBERARELR
ESR U

Pt &
(i)

BREE®

HEmm
AEBYRLEEFBERTE
EmBBARRTHERIR
HAERM RERANBE BT K
MEERFEIGHA AEERE
iR IR e S N CIE
BE DNBAEEEERNER
BB A A A

REEAHHHRE LS
SoMEEMEEAELE-
ANHEREEERNMAE
YERHUETEMHBE K&
BIRA&A NS R
et AREGHAEHE &
RAZ2YEGTORMER
RENEARBREENF
BRE AEBERMRARE
i FE A 3R 9 BE R TR H R SR @
MWEKEE RN20185F1A
THREHEREMNT R EME
154 3K A0 [8] 471 4 £ 537,000 % 7T °
AEHERE RERRS RN
RABEMBEHREERED
FEREFE G EURIBRM
BBERAMUEEAZER KA
H201BF1ATR M R B E
EEEAZE-

R20185F12A3E - REE &
M mELERFELR  AEE
7 E A A 3R A B 581,753,000
ETMERAE-
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the date of
the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
The interpretation has had no impact on the Group's financial
statements as the Group's accounting policy for the determination
of the exchange rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary
assets or non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FTEEHRREEH
2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting 23 EFRBFERKRERNEENE

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

BEZER

EEMBREER-

AEBYBAERBEHRERFTER T
B MM 1B 1 R A A0 3 5T RSB R

Amendments to HKFRS 3
EEVBREEREIR 2BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 9
EEVBREEREIR 2BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

ERMBREENFEI05 R
BRI ERF285%(201) 27T

HKFRS 16
ERAMBREERFEI65H

HKFRS 17
ERAMBREEREITR

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
EREGHEABIRREBSHERNESR 2EF]

Amendments to HKAS 19
BRI EANFI9R 2B

Amendments to HKAS 28
BERGEAFEBHE 2B

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
EEERVERERRZEG)RRENR

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
20154 £2017 F B B ) 5 & 2

Definition of a Business®

EHHEE?

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

ARHENENTEFE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture *

REZHEEBENFHA

Leases'

HE"

Insurance Contracts

R A H?

Definition of Material?

MHEEE?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

FTE|EIE R EE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
RELNAREELENRAEZR

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

8B 8 T HE I

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

BEUFREERNEIN EEHBEHREERES

FERIEI12ERBEE G ERF23% 2 67T

ERREZHEENMLEHRA

BES

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

1 R2019%F1H1H 2.2 % B 15 1) % 8 5

BE%

2 R2020F 15180 3 2 1% B 15 &9 F JE H

£ %

3 R2021F1 /10 2.2 % 6 15 8] F K &

4%

4 i R E I ERA A AR

A
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liahility) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated losses at 1 January
2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans
to apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (continued)
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the

lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. The Group plans to use the exemptions
allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption. At 31 December 2018,
the Group had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in aggregate of approximately US$3,817,000.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January
2019 and will assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using
the transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends
to apply the relief from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is
in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Related parties (continued)

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

2.
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as follows: WEBERERNT
Freehold land KAEE LT Not depreciated
TTHE
Building BF 2%
Leasehold improvements HEWMERE 20% or over the lease period,

Furniture, fixtures, licenses and equipment

Machinery and laboratory equipment BMRRERERE
Mator vehicles il

BE BEXE HFELRSB

whichever is shorter

0% HREHABEE RBE)

33.33%

12.50% t0 33.33%

33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of no more than eight years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

100

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as finance income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or lass, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income and debt instruments which are held
for trading. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as finance income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or
a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance income in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 January 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in administrative expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in finance income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in finance income. Interest and dividends earmned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as finance income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-
for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

108

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2.
24 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

110

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FTEEHRREEH
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 24 EXEHREHREH

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the
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allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
24 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018)"; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials and
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liahilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

120

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary

integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the sale of

proprietary integrated circuits products provide customers volume

rebates. The volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

h#E=®ZA(H2018F1818EEA)

(&)

EFPAKNREE)

a) BEREEXERERHEE
BEREREREMHEENNK
AMEERGREBEERP
RER —RAXNEREK
EHREMK BHrEEENE
RERHEHEAAORHETRH
EEM-HLEEMSLATER
Bo

(i) Volume rebates (i) #=2EM
Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain ETEF—BBERTE
customers once the quantity of products purchased during EmBBAENETEH=

the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected
future rebates, the most likely amount method is used for
contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected
value method for contracts with more than one volume
threshold. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the
number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the
expected future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective

interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated

future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument

or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following basis:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Refund liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees with grant after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 25 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of
the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to
an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any madification, that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at
the grant date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the instruments were granted (note 25). The fair value is expensed over
the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The liability
is measured at the end of each reporting period up to and including the
settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and overseas are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into US$ at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into US$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments

31

Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group is exposed to fair value or cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the interest-bearing bank borrowings of the
Group with either fixed or floating interest rates. The Group currently does
not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures primarily
arise from revenue and other income generated, and cost and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the Group’s operating
units’ functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’ that have
the Hong Kong dollar ("HK$") as their functional currency, their foreign
currency transactions during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
and the units’ monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were mainly denominated
in US$. As HK$ is pegged to the US$ within a narrow band, the Group
does not expect any significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate.
Accordingly, management considers that the Group's foreign currency risk
exposure for HK$ is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
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3.  Financial risk management and fair value and fair value 3. MERAREE OFERLAFR
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued) R E )
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBERRBREAR®
Credit risk (continued) FERRE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A3NAE R ER K F K&
o H

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRBRTERAEBREERERN

credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on 1?}3% HEENGRERREBMA %

past due information unless other information is available without undue CERRTEENBENIHER

cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. (BRIFEMEBRETINEHRK A

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. %5 7) UREE218F128318

MEKSHIE-MIcBERSR
EENKRELSE-
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
NRERRBEESE FRANEHEEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1E R 2B $E3RE B ER @it
Us$000 Us$000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TERn TER TR
Trade receivables* T Ui 35 - - - 24,054 24,054
Financial assets included in ek HEMmERTA
deposits and other receivables HemEE
— Normal** —E®* 1,562 - - - 1,562
Pledged bank deposits BERAOBRITER
— Not yet past due —KBH 130 - _ _ 130
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHEEED
— Not yet past due - RiBH 13,395 = = = 13,395
15,087 - - 24,054 39141

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * EHAEBENARERFEIETE
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the ETREEBHEN RUFREZN
financial statements. H22KE -

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits and other receivables ** e MEMBERFTEENEBEE
is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information HEHESEAT R HER IR
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial WHREEEXRBENIEERESH
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be BENGEHEABRBELN B/ 25
“doubtful”. BEMNZHESHAREFEL] -
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3. Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

31

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 43% (2017:
26%) and 80% (2017: 70%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors, respectively.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working capital
requirements regularly.

3. MERREE L2FERLFR

BEENE
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EERBGE)
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3. Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

31

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

follows:

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontinced
ﬁfﬁ #&%W u_|I_ %)

3. MBRRER-

EH®B

31

MEBRBEER®
REMER(E)

RBERR AEEEKA

XFERLFR

K RBER

NREENERABINNBERET

mE

No fixed term

2018

of repayment/ Less than 3 to less than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
REEEN
BRER/ MMRAED
REREE JHH3IEAR w1218 A 1Z85% @i
Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'o00 Uss$'000 Uss$'000
TEn TER FER TER xR
Financial liabilities included in B R E A B 3R
trade and other payables ANEERBE 4,306 18,693 4 = 23,003
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ $R1T:H E B R - m 89 - 200
4,306 18,804 23 - 23,203
2017
No fixed term
of repayment/ Lessthan 3 to less than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1tobyears Total
R B8
BRER/ JEAZED
REREE LR3IEA 1218 A 1E5%F @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$:000
TEn FTEx Fxx TEx FEx
Financial liabilities included in JER R E A B 3R
trade and other payables NEERBE 3,787 15,490 148 - 19,423
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ #R1T:H EE R - 25 78 200 303
3,787 15,515 224 200 19,726
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3. Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

31

Financial risk factors (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to owners of the

3. MERREE L2FERLFR

BEENE
31 BERBER®
EAERE

AREEAEENEZERARRE
AEERERENEIYTATRRE
MEALE UXHEXBRAR
REESRKEE-

AEBERBEBERREELCREHE
ENERBHEERAREEAR
B-RERAABELARE £&
BREREERNTRERLEITNMR
0o AN &R B3 A AT ] S0 B 3 A0 &Y
BAZRAR KRB E2018F12 A
NH R2017ENZANBIEEE &
AEEBER BRIBFIRELE

25

AEBNEANBADEER AR

parent. (B
Fair value AFEE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, BEEEAEBHMEBENATLENS R
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to TAN AEBESRTIANKEE
fair values, are as follows: MATFERT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE D¥E
2018 2017 2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TET TER TEr
Financial assets CHMEE
Financial assets at fair value BIBE TR
through profit or loss REEER
MBEE 9,247 23,158 9,247 23,158
Equity investment designated BATFEEBRTA
at fair value through other Hibz2mk A
comprehensive income Bk ERE 839 - 839 -
10,086 23,158 10,086 23,158

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

31

Financial risk factors (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposit, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate
to their fair values.

The fair values of listed equity investments and funds, marketable bonds
and marketable funds are based on quoted market prices.

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which were previously classified
as financial asset at cost, have been estimated by observable prices or
rates of sale of similar assets. The directors believe that the estimated
fair value, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that it was the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has a call option over non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
which is recorded as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
The fair value of this call option is based on a valuation technique that are
not based on observable market data. Details of the valuation technique
and key inputs are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value and fair value
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

31

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

3.

MERREE 2FERLFR

BERNE

31 MERRBEE®
ALEERZR
BESERA:
BERATEHSE:

TRAFBEAKSEEBTANAAR

RN2018512 8318

Fair value measurement using

AFEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active ohservable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AER AEE FABR
miERE BARE WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1ER) (B2E &) (B3E &) et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TExn TExn TEx TER
Equity investment designated BAFEAETAE
at fair value through other b 2 TH WA &Y
comprehensive income % 2 % & - 839 - 839
Financial assets at fair value BIBE TR
through profit or loss NEEENTE
BE = = = =
Call option over non-controlling I 2= % # 2%
interests RIE = - 467 467
Listed equity securities and fund  FHRE R E & 59 - - 59
Marketable bonds AEEES 567 - - 567
Marketable funds NEEES 8,154 - - 8,154
8,780 839 467 10,086
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3.  Financial risk management and fair value and fair value 3. MERAREE OFERLAFR
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued) E#& B
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBERBRER®
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DNFEERA(E)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017% 128318

Fair value measurement using

AT(EH BRI
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
NS R TABE
TI5RE B ABE PN €7
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1E&R) (B2 &) (B3EHR) mst
US$‘000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value BiBEE U R
through profit or loss: RNEEERTH
BE:
Call option over non-controlling  FE % i # &
interests REE - - 788 788
Listed equity securities and fund  FHREZ R E % 4,976 - - 4,976
Marketable bonds AEERES 7,819 - - 7,819
Marketable funds NEEES 9,575 - - 9,575
22,370 - 788 23,158
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3.  Financial risk management and fair value and fair value 3 MBERREE XFERAER
hierarchy of financial instruments (continued) E®RB
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBREER®
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EBERBNE

ERN FIBRRE2ERZERE
AFENEER BEFIBLRLR
BEEALE (2017 £) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial assets (2017: Nil).

R2018F12ANHE AEBEREE
BEENRATEFNEQNT: &) -

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year FHN FIBHRHRFEEHOT
as follows:

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
TEx FTEx
Financial assets at fair value through BAEBSURBATEE
profit or loss: N BEE
— Call option over non-controlling interests - R ESREE
At 1 January 1A1H 788 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W F 1A - 874
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss ARFEBEERFBRER (321) (86)
At 31 December 12A31H 467 788

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Income tax

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. Determining
income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the
constraint for the sale of products.

Certain contracts for the sale of products include volume rebates that give rise
to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Group
is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount
method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled.

In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of products with volume
rebates, the Group determined that using the most likely amount method is
appropriate. The selected method that better predicts the amount of variable
consideration related to volume rebates is primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount method is
used for those contracts with a single volume threshold.
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revenue from contracts with custemers (continued)

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price,
the Group considers whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained.
The Group determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not
constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current
economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2018
was US$2,317,000 (2017: US$2,317,000). Further details are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
with finite useful life are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
using key assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets at 31 December 2018 were US$5,036,000 (2017: US$5,084,000) and
US$13,292,000 (2017: US$17,524,000), respectively.
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the relevant
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of inventories
with reference to aged analyses of the Group's inventories, relevant historical
sales, usage reports and obsolescence. The determination of net realisable
value requires management experience and judgement. Based on this review,
write-down of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable
value of inventories declines below their carrying amount. Due to changes in
technological, market and economic environment and customers’ preference,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or loss
could be affected by differences in this estimation. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of inventories was US$32,654,000 (2017: US$20,527,000).
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Segment information and disaggregation of revenue

During the year, the Group has principally engaged in the design, development
and sales of proprietary IC products and system solutions that enable a wide
range of display applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including wearables, healthcare devices,
smart home devices, as well as industrial appliances, etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment, i.e. the design,
development and sales of IC products and system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the Executive
Directors and senior management led by the Chief Executive Officer. The
Executive Directors and senior management reviewed the Group's internal
reporting as whole to assess performance and allocate resources. A management
approach has been used for the operating segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$98,148,000 and US$82,464,000 for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong. During 2018, the Group's products were mainly sold to customers located
in Hong Kong, Taiwan, China and Europe.

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by
geographical market

SHAHRBEFI S

RERN AEBFERER Eﬁ%’f&%’
EERERRFERREGTHRAATR
REEEETH FTREK B4 f-EZﬁ/
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RREERRERVTESENT
EETHRREEE -MITESEM
BERIASEBEAMBHRE AFME
NEER-BEENEERNEED
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=
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o m
d» HH

2018 %2017 12 A3NH L5 E B E
7l /598,148,000 T }282,464,000% 7T -

ARFMAEBUREE -FAREETER
BEREEEBL -N208FRN AEEZ

ERIEHETUREL LH PER
Y LESE

(a) BHBETHESEHNEFRSHY
&

2018 2017
Us$'000 US$'000

TER TErx

Hong Kong &5 46,313 22,885
Taiwan & 20,349 22,410
China & 9,717 12,260
Europe BOM 8,230 5,762
Japan =N 1,513 5,193
Korea # 4,125 10,501
South East Asia B 367 1,759
USA x 440 468
Others Eib 594 1,226
98,148 82,464

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which customers are
located.

HERREFPMENE BRIH -
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS eonied
SePBREMEw

5. Segment information and disaggregation of revenue b. PHBHRBEHEIF
(continued)
(b) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by (b) REREEIENERSHEK
product types a8
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$000
FEx FEx
Advanced Display ICs %3 28 7R Cs 49,229 41,157
Large Display ICs KA EE R ICs 17,965 6,186
Other ICs H b ICs 30,954 35,121
98,148 82,464
Other mainly comprises mobile touch and mobile display products. EMWETZARYBIENBRHERE
uE'u .
(c) Non-current assets (c) KDHEE
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
FER FEL
Hong Kong &5 12,14 15,966
China FE 5128 4,850
Taiwan =0 2172 2,491
Korea B 1,536 1,763
United Kingdom HE 310 543
Others Hit 20 7
21,907 25,620
Non-current assets are listed based on where the assets are located ERBEE(TEEEAMIE) IR
which exclude financial instruments. Others mainly comprise Japan. BEERMEMTUSE - Efx
RO =l N
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5.

Segment information and disaggregation of revenue h. PHBHRBEHEIF
(continued)
(d) Capital expenditures (d) BFFHAX
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
FTER FET
Intangible assets BREE
China H - 2,500
- 2,500
Property, plant and equipment NE- -BERRE
China e 1,591 1,197
Taiwan = 233 924
United Kingdom i 29 801
Hong Kong BB 3 55
Others Eib 7 40
1,933 3,017

(e)

(f)

Capital expenditures are listed based on where the assets are located.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the largest and the second largest
customers were located in Hong Kong and the third largest customer was
located in Taiwan. Sales to them were US$14,698,000, US$13,601,000
and US$11,234,000 respectively which were all over 10% of the
Group's total revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2017, sales of
US$10,504,000 were derived from a single external customer located in
Taiwan which were over 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

Performance obligation

Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the products
and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery. Some
contracts provide customers with volume rebates which give rise to
variable consideration subject to constraint.

(e)

(f)

BARXTIBRBEEENMEN TN
R

EEEFR

HEDBFIANBILEFE AR
E_AREPURERE MEZAEP
I &g - B iHE % 5 5l /514698000
57t~ 13,601,000 7T 211,234,000 7T *
YEEAEERHEEREBRI0% &
ENT7TFNZANBLEFE HEESD
10504000 TELEE I BEF
REPURBEBLEAEERHER
#Ei810% °

BHRE

HERHEREM
EXNERNERERKBETENR
T IRBEBEEXNKRIDENRA
I —LAaRREFPRHETHE
EH - EERTRRAINAZHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues
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6.

1.

SR ELIET

Loss hefore tax 6. BRRUER
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging: $ SEOBRBABEBR DR TS EE
BH:
2018 2017
Note US$'000 US$'000
Mt & TEn FTEL
Cost of inventories sold EHFERAK 63,661 49,409
Product engineering costs EmIEBKA 4,405 5,244
Provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories BESIEHEFENEE 21 5,920 3,454
Amortization of intangible assets EBREE®H 14 4,201 3612
Depreciation e 15 1,750 1,284
Minimum lease payments under operating leases KeEHsrREHEENK 1,912 1918
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEERE - F R 133 54
Auditor's remuneration % SR B & 212 259
Employee benefit expenses EERAMMAL
(included directors’ emoluments (note 10)) (BREEZEH 2 (FFE10)) :
— Salaries, allowances, bonuses and I A= A AW
other benefits HiEF 29,703 30,989
— Equity-settled share option expenses “UEEENBRERS 12 369
— Cash-settled share option expenses LR HEENERENS 28 -
— Pension scheme contributions — —RREEH -
(defined contribution schemes) (RAEHTED 520 689
— Termination benefits — & IEEF 704 343
30,967 32,390
Other income and gains — net 7. HttARWSB B
2018 2017
UsS$'000 Us$000
TER FET
Government grants* BURS 8 L > 4,162 5,883
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and TEME BMERKREEE®
equipment &= 17 24
Others Hh 272 220
4,551 6,127

Various government grants have been received for the Group's research and development

projects during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants.

al) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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8. Finance income — net 8. RBEWA-BH

2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000
FTER FEx
Interest income B U A 361 814
Dividend income =R ON 122 347
Fair value gain from financial assets at FVTPL, net BB EF AR KR QA FEER
AR ARG FE 1,491 2,781
Interest expenses of bank loans RITEFHFE T H (4) (4)
1,970 3,938
9.  Five highest paid employees 9. IEEEFHER
One (2017: one) of the five top-paid employees of the Group is a Director of AEBREERHFALBRE %2017
the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10 to the financial —B)ARAREE HMeERFB@RE
statements. B SE10 /< Bk o
Details of the emoluments of the other four (2017: four) top-paid employees who BT 2 A IFEE RIFTHREHRQ2017:
are neither a director nor chief executive officer of the Company are as follows: mE)&eH ATHHSOT
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$000
TER FEx
Basic salaries, other allowances and EXFe REMEINMN
benefits in kind = 743 756
Discretionary bonuses BISIE4 211 370
Contribution to pension scheme BRI N (R 29 46
983 1172

Number of individuals

AE

Emolument bands (HK$)
WeemaEET) 2018 2017

1,000,000-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
3,000,001-3,500,000 =

N = -
= N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontues

EPN

wIN 3

10.

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive officer's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

W& I 5T

10. EXERTHAKNS

BE LR R REB DA EPI5£383(1)a) -
(b) - (c)R(ERABDREEENZER)
ROB2HMBEBELRAFEZEERITHA

HewmT:

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018

BENBFRANBLEREESZHE

Pension
Salaries and scheme
benefitin kind®  contributions Share-based
Fees 2R Bik& payment™ Total
e H 3 R0 FERR it B st
Uss$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
TER Fxn FEn Txn FEn
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFGTES
Leung Heung Ying PERS 3 - - 1 H
Sheu Wei Fu HEx 3 - - 1 u
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph AR L] - - 1 L}
1 - - 2 13
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Li Jun FIg - - - - -
Li Rongxin REE - - - - -
Zhao Guiwu** HER* - - _ _ N
Ma Yuchuan* 5 - - - - -
Executive Directors HTES
Yeh Tsuei Chi*** gy - 305 13 43 361
Lo Wai Ming EEH - 148 1 19 174
- 5 2 ) 535
14 453 20 8 670
(i) Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium and other allowances. (i) AmEFaERETE REBRAMEL -
(i) This represents the amount charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss under the (i) WREEEHBHREERE25 R 15145

*¥

requirements of HKFRS 2 Share-based payments. During the current and prior years, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors” and

chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

Appointed as non-executive director on 14 March 2018.

Resigned as non-executive director on 14 March 2018.

Served also as the Chief Executive Officer.

national) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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10. Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration (continued)

10. EERTTHRAZM &

Directors" emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017

BENTS12ANAL5EEE M

Pension
Salaries and scheme
benefit in kind contributions Share-based
Fees ek BlRe payment Total
Be Efb it 8l ¢ 5% RERx @it
US§000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
TEn TER TET TER TET
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Leung Heung Ying 2R b/ - - 9 I8
Sheu Wei Fu HE PN 30 - - 9 3
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph R ki - - 9 i
9 - - 21 126
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Li Jun Tt 1 - - - 1
Li Rongxin -1 1 - - - 1
Zhao Guiwy HER 1 - - _ 1
3 - - - 3
Executive Directors HiTES
Yeh Tsuei Chi RE5 - 306 13 25 544
Lo Wai Ming EEH - 146 7 o] 210
- 452 0 282 754
102 452 20 309 883

FR AEERECNIENEENS
ERMAREEKMAREE RN ZH
FAFREER A E (0175 - &) -

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2017: Nil).

FABEEEREARENETCAN S
B2 HE (20175 < &) o

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
A BRI

1.

Income tax 1. BR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) EBRGHMEBREFRNEEBELN G T
on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the year, while JE 2R F B 1R BB 16.5% (2017 : 16.5%) #y Fi
overseas income tax has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the RHAE MBI EREBIEEFRERRHN
countries in which the Group operates. WM EE-
2018 2017
Note US$'000 US$000
i 5% TER FTET
Current income tax: ENHAFT 5 %
Hong Kong — Overprovision in EB-NEFE
prior years SREE (89) -
Overseas 8o 142 62
Deferred income tax i TE P15 7 27 (53) (43)
Total income tax expense FriSmi He s - 19

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax using the Hong

Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax rate for the jurisdictions in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at

the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

ERREAEELZERR(RAAA REX
HOMBRAMEREZEERAETEHRX)
AENBRBABRENRAERERAR
EERREFENRBRIEENT

2018 2017

US$'000 Us$000

TER TErx

Loss before tax BaEE (13,768) (10,302)
Income tax calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% P15 B0 1R B %16.5%

(2017: 16.5%) (2017 : 16.5%) 5t & (2.272) (1,700)
Difference in tax rates for other jurisdictions HprzEBERNNEEE (380) (67)
Profits attributable to associates /NS RzE (37) (4)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous 7438 7 2 X & B F B B

periods 2T (89) -
Income not subject to tax BER B (4,805) (4,810)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 4,742 3,889
Tax losses utilized from previous periods FERANESHERESSE (21) (190)
Tax losses not recognised RAERWBIAEE 2,913 2,930
Others Hth (51) (29)
Tax charge at the Group's BASEERBERTEZ

effective rate BEAX = 19
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12. Loss per share
(a) Basic loss per share
The basic loss per share for the year is calculated based on the Group's
loss in 2018 attributable to the owners of the parent of US$13,677,000
(2017: US$10,233,000) and the weighted average number of 2,480,028,242
(2017: 2,478,135,913) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
The diluted loss per share is calculated based on the Group's loss
attributable to the owners of the parent and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of ordinary
shares is as follows:

12 BRER

(a) BREFER
FREFABEREREAQRANE
BABBASER08FZER
13,677,0005 7L(2017 + 10,233,000 7T)
RAFERD ETE BB NEF T H
2,480,028,242 % (2017 : 2,478,135,913
B & -

(b) SREEER
SREBERDLDREARANES
ANEEAGBERRCHRFAME
REGCHEZENTRRELAR
RzMEFHERBEBGE -

o 8 IR BT B0 B A R BB
M

Number of shares

RAHE
2018 2017

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & %% 17 3% 8 %

in issue INHE T 15 B 2,480,028,242 2,478,135,913
Conversion of all dilutive share options HprAER FRITAES

outstanding" FEN R EERE = -
Adjusted weighted average number of RIEFFEBREBEEN

ordinary shares for diluted loss per share AR T ER

calculation HNAE 15 Bk 81 2,480,028,242 2,478,135,913

(i) As at 31 December 2018, there were 21,760,000 (2017: 31,600,000) share options
outstanding which could potentially have a dilutive impact but were anti-dilutive for
the year then ended. Hence, no adjustment has been made on the calculation of the
diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

13. Dividend
No dividend for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was declared or
paid by the Company. In addition, the Board resolved not to propose any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

13.

(i) R2018F12H31H - A 7 & 77 A #
B & 0 fE R 1E 321,760,000 (2017 -
31,600,000)/% - % SR 17 A F & 1 48
FE ERAEGRETERIESL
REEZE - At it H2018%F K 2017
FIZANAILFRENGREFGHRL
EAHE

kB

AR B E R KR & £2018 % 2017
FRANBLEFEZRE -BE EFE
RETEESRAZ18512A318 1t
FRZRHBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
A BRI

14. Intangible assets

14 BERRE

Patents and

intellectual
property
Goodwill HEAR Total
BmE HIHE #st
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FETT FET FET
31 December 2017 201712831 H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of 20171 A1 KA
accumulated amortisation BB R AT 5 - 16,740 16,740
Additions — acquired separately ANE-BEBHES - 2,500 2,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) Wi — MM 8 A a (K F16) 2,317 1,896 4,213
Amortization provided during the year FEREE - (3,612) (3,612)
At 31 December 2017 »2017%F12 A31H 2,317 17,524 19,841
At 31 December 2017 »2017F12A31H
Cost PN 2,317 25,965 28,282
Accumulated amortization EEs - (8,441) (8,441)
Net carrying amount REEE 2,317 17,524 19,841
31 December 2018 2018F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of 20181 A1 B A
accumulated amortisation R R AT g 2,317 17,524 19,841
Amortization provided during the year FAE - (4,201) (4,201)
Exchange realignment [E 3 & & - (31) (31)
At 31 December 2018 MN2018F 12831 H 2,317 13,292 15,609
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A431H
Cost B A< 2,317 25,934 28,251
Accumulated amortization 25t - (12,642) (12,642)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 2,317 13,292 15,609

Amortisation expense of US$4,201,000 (2017: US$3,612,000) has been charged

in research and development costs.

national) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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14.

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment testing for goodwill

Goodwill of US$2,317,000 is allocated to the Cash-generating unit (“CGU") of
Touch and Display Driver Integration (“TDDI") for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for calculations in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

14.

BLEE®

BEREIR
22,317,000t A EEETODIR € EA B
fir 3 777 B R 8 B -

MEBmEcReELBEUZI KBS
REMEEE] ERCLEEEEHRN
CEMBBEERARGHASREN B
BSF M & IRIZ AT FERNE & KA

2018 R2017THFERU T I ERMRETE

2018 2017
Average revenue growth rate EEBIHEEER 42% 87%
Average gross margin T E R E 34% 22%
Discount rate BhIE & 16% 20%
Long-term growth rate REER X 3% 3%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance
and its expectations of the market and technology development. The value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the average revenue achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, taking into account the expected growth
rate. The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the CGU. The long-
term growth rate did not exceed the average growth rate of the industry.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the average growth rate
by 24% would cause the carrying amount of the CGU to equal to its recoverable
amount, and any reasonably possible change in other key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount is based would not cause the CGU's carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount. As at 31 December 2018, the CGU's recoverable
amount exceeds its carrying amount by US$9,200,000.

ERERBRAERANAY MG RKRIMW
BRNEHETREENR - DEGREE
HEBRNEBREREFEZAN—F
FERNTFHEER REZEDRHE
REX-FAMRERRRTERSELEN
BRENEERR RPEREZLRBEBRT
ENTHERE-

ARAREZTRR  FHERXH D 24%H
EYREELBUMNBREESTNATK
EEE MARESEMRENEGER
BROEAAEANEED KT EEHR
CEABUMEEEBRATKDEE
R2018F12A3NH - BeEEEMAN K
o] < %7 8 48 H Bk [ 159,200,000 % 7T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS eontued
SePBREMEw

15. Property, plant and equipment 15. WX BERER

Furniture,
fixtures and Machinery
Land"  Leasehold  equipment and laboratory
and building ~ improvements fE equipment Motor

H0 HENE  BERE BER vehicles Total
REF &8 kRt ERERB g @it
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§ 000 US§ 000 US$000
TEn TEn TER TERL TERL TER

31 Decemher 2018 M18%128318
At 31 December 2017 and RTE12A31B R
1 January 2018 W8E1A1H

Cost A 1792 2001 6,298 17,181 0 88

Accumulated depreciation ZiME (189) (2.452) (4.862) (15,605) (70) (23.178)

Net carrying amount EREE 1,603 469 143 1576 - 5,084

At1 January 2018, net of accumulated depreciation 201851 B1R B 257 & 1,603 469 143 1576 = 5,084

Exchange realignment EHER (62) 1] (44) 81) - (194)

Additions NE - 58 517 1,358 - 1933

Disposals i = = = (3 = (37)

Depreciation provided during the year ENTE (21) (208) (785) (736) - (1,750)

At 31 December 2018, 2018512 A31H

net of accumulated depreciation RBREIE 1520 3n 1124 2080 = 5,036

At 31 December 2018 R018F12 /318

Cost KA 1722 2,851 6,404 16,538 0 21,585

Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (202) (2539) (5,280) (14,458) (70) (22,549)

Net carrying amount EmFE 1520 32 1124 2080 - 5,036
Depreciation expenses of US$399,000 (2017: US$285,000) has been charged in #1 & & F399,0003 7T (2017 : 285,000 7T.)
cost of sales, US$368,000 (2017: US$354,000) in research and development costs B AHERNE FARELRREER A
and US$983,000 (2017 US$645,000) in administrative expenses. 368,000 7t (2017 : 354,000% 7T) * 5 A 1T

1§ F 52 /3983,000% 7T (2017 - 645,0005 7T)
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15.

16.

Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15. WE BEREME®
Furniture,
fixtures and Machinery
Land"  Leasehold  equipment and laboratory

and building ~ improvements

FE>  equipment Motor

0 BEME  EEZE HER vehicles Total
REF % ks ERERE e @5t
US§000 US§000 US§000 US§ 000 US§ 000 US§ 000
Tin Ti7 T Tin Tin Tin
31 Decemher 2017 M17E128318
At1 January 2017 RA1TE1A18
Cost KA 1662 2461 6,707 16,293 10 2019
Accumulated depreciation 23 E (156) (2311) 6,117) (15,256 (70) (23970)
Net carrying amount FOFE 1506 90 590 1037 - 3203
At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated depreciation R2017 1 A 1R A 25 7 & 1508 el 590 1037 - 300
Exchange realignment EXHE 17 $ 8 1 - 168
Additions NE - 509 1375 1133 - 3017
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16] KE—-ENERF M E6) - - 1 7 - 19
Disposals HH# - (56) 2) - - (19)
Depreciation provided during the year ERHE (20) 83) (566) (615) - (1,284
At 31 December 2017, R7TE12A318H
net of accumulated depreciation RBREIE 1603 169 143 1576 - 5084
At 31 December 2017 R0TE12A318
Cost kAR 179 29 6,298 17,181 10 28,262
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (189) (2452) (4.862) (15,605) n0) (13.179)
Net carrying amount EmFE 1603 469 14% 1576 - h,084
(i) One of the Group’s bank loan is secured by the Group’s land and building. Freehold land in i) FEBF-FHRTEFANLEBT L RIEFIE
Taiwan of US$711,000 (2017 US$740,000) was included in the land and building. HH-REEHBE KA EREN L H711,000%
JL(2017 : 740,000%7T) » @FEE LI REFH »
Business combinations 16. X¥ESH

On 22 February 2017, the Group acquired 52% of the issued shares and a call
option to acquire the remaining 48% of the equity interests in Sentron, Inc., a
company that is a design and development house of ICs for display applications,
for a consideration of US$4,000,000. The acquisition is expected to increase the
Group's market share by product developments.

201752 A228 - 7 % B LA #E{E 4,000,000
%7t Y8 T Sentron, Inc.» — K E R FE A
ICHIER AT R A 8 R A AT B 17 R 17 1952%
Ko 52 1% B 4 BA U B Sentron, Inc. 8 T 48% f%
AR REWEBFTEMEERRE -
EOAEBEARMSMHE -
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16.
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Business combhinations (continued)

16.

The goodwill of US$2,317,000 arises from a number of factors, including

expected synergies through combining a highly skilled workforce, obtaining

greater production efficiencies through knowledge transfer, and unrecognized

assets such as the workforce. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Sentron, Inc., and

the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at the

acquisition date.

RXEatw

BE2317000X TWAEETRE %Z @R
Z ERBHESRWAT BEELNR
FME EENBELRALERE U
PARBHERNEE MAL - LELER
MAERAAENRASHRE -

TRAETEKE B4 Sentron, Inc. By
BB BANECENBRRENEGLE-

Fair value
recognized on
acquisition

kg AR
HAFE
Note US$'000
B+ TEx
Cash paid AeIH 4,000
Less: fair value of a call option over non-controlling W ERESRBENLATE
interests a (874)
Total consideration BIERE 3,126
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired CHEANCHREIIRREEMN
and liabilities assumed EEBE
— Intangible assets -BEEE 14 1,896
— Property, plant and equipment -WE BEMZ 15 19
— Cash and cash equivalents -HehkBREEEY 33
— Trade and other receivables — B MR B E A e MR 264
— Inventories -FE 13
— Trade and other payables —JE T R E A RE TR (86)
— Deferred tax liability -REMBEHEE 27 (408)
— Bank loan —RITER 31 (174)
Total identifiable net assets AhRFEERE 1,556
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 2 b (747)
Goodwill BES 2,317
Total consideration BIERE 3,126
Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative HEBEEEER
expenses in the consolidated statement of (BRABZRAK
profit or loss) THRER) 75
Cash paid Bex N 4,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B EBARSRREEED (33)
Net cash outflow on acquisition BALYEES Y E 3,967
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16. Business combinations (continued)

(a)

Call option over non-controlling interests

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement entered into between the
Group and the shareholders of Sentron, Inc., the Group was granted a
call option to acquire part or all of the remaining 48% equity interests
in Sentron, Inc. The call option is divided into four batches, each
representing 12% equity interests in Sentron, Inc. Each of the four batches
will become exercisable after the years ending 31 December 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021, respectively. The exercise price of each batch would be
determined based on the performance targets for the respective financial
years and the total consideration for the remaining 48% equity interests is
capped at US$4,000,000.

The fair value of the call option was determined by using the Monte Carlo
simulation model with the following key assumptions:

16.

X¥EBatn

(a)

FRRESIEE

1R 1% A< & @ 22 Sentron, Inc. f% R 5] 32
HERBE AEEERREREU
1z B Sentron, Inc. 2P 7 5k & 26 £ T 48%
AR - ZREES BT B
Sentron, Inc. B% 7N # 25 §912% © PU #L 33
EESZE D RNEE218F 2019
F200F R201F12A3181LFE
BRI TIIE SHETEEBRIE
HATHRFEFENRRABEET M
BRTBLR ARG BT EELR
/4,000,000 7T

RERNAFEEERRBRER
REAZUTIERRET:

2018 2017
Risk-free interest rate 1 8 I F & 1.18% - 3.01% 1.85% —2.24%
Volatility & 50% 50%
Dividend yield P B = 0% 0%
Price to sales ratio kRS 0.72 1.0
Expected option life (year) DPEEEREH(E) 1.0-4.0 14-40
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16. Business combinations (continued)

154

(a)

(b)

(c)

Call option over non-controlling interests (continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as

16. R¥ES )

(a)

FERERRME
AT 2 E 2018412 A31 A M2017
FI2ANBLBIAGENEAT

at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017: EBEEGASBEUREEHEES
MORE:
Significant As at Asat  ensitivity of fair value
unobservable input 31 December \31 December o the input
Valuation technique ~ EARABE R2A31E  R2A318 ATEEUBARE
10D AR 2018 07 pasE
Call option over Monte Carlo Volatility 50% 50%  The higher the volatility,
non-controlling interests simulation method K& the higher the fair value
FERERRBE SENEREE RERA - AEEERR
Risk-free interest rate 118%-3.01%  1.85% —2.24%  The higher the risk-free interest rate,
ERRRE the higher the fair value
BERTXDS  ATEETS
Price-to-sales ratio 0.72 1.0 The higher the price-to-sales ratio,
[iiFES the higher the fair value
miEkAs - ATEEDR
Non-controlling interests (b) ERRRRER
The non-controlling interests were recognized at their proportionate share 3E 13 [} # % 12 & 7£ Sentron, Inc. B &
of the recognized amounts of identifiable net assets in Sentron, Inc. REOTBRRIFEERHLLAIER -
Revenue and profit contribution (c) BWAFMF BRI

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Sentron, Inc. contributed no
revenues and net loss of US$1,168,000 to the Group since acquisition
date. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, consolidated
revenue and consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
would have been US$82,464,000 and US$10,552,000, respectively.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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17.

Investments in associates

17. RBELFAMHRE

2018 2017
Uss$'000 US$'000
TER FET
Share of net assets [Efh = EE 737 515
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BENTNFABRAAT
Place of
incorporation Particulars of Percentage of equity attributable to
and registered capital/ the Company
operation issued shares ARARERAE AL
Associated companies EMELR Principal activities &R,/ 2018 2017
BEAT BEY TEEH ERTRGIEHE % %
Beijing LED Energy Management ~ PRC LED system design and ~ CNY20,000,000
Technology Co. Ltd. H contract installation A X#20,000,000
T REREH AR AR LEDEFRaRE &
G IERRE 235% 235%
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000
FEINBRAF 0 manufacturing & 38,000,000 ¢
distribution of LCD
modules
Rat BB RER
D IERBERGF
B 250% 25.0%

associates that are not individually material:

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group’s

R EMNLFEK:

TRIAAEANHEDANLEYH

2018 2017
Us$'000 US$'000
TxR FET
Share of the associates’ profit and total JE 15 B = N &)
comprehensive income for the year AEFEE2EKZE 222 272
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REERE 2 QA
investments in the associates RENET A% 737 515
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18. Subsidiaries

18. MELF
ARAEEMBARAFAERMT

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation and

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation ~ Particulars of capital Interest held
£R AMRUEEREERL IEXEREELY kAt KERER
Solomon Systech Limited HK LLC Design, development, sales of IC and 188,585,271 ordinary shares of 100%
BARBERAA £ BRAT system solutions, HK HK$188,585,271
R BROBEERERERE 1835828 AT ERR
ZRBANE BE

Jing Guang Semiconductors (Dongguan) Limited PRC, LLC Manufacturing of C, China USS7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
RERELEEERAT hEERAA BESNERER 1E 1500000% TE M R& R AR
Solomon Systech Japan Company Limited Japan, LLC Market research, Japan 10,000 ordinary shares of JPY1,000 each 100%

BE BRAA EHRE B 1000REREEIFATOERR
Solomon Systech Korea Limited Korea, LLC Application R&D, Korea 2,000 ordinary shares of KRWS5,000 each 100%

&8 ARLA ERFE BE 2008 B REES0E AL AR
Solomon Systech Pte. L1d. Singapore, LLC Design and distribution of IC, Singapore 480,000 ordinary shares of SGD1 each 100%

AMRANE ARAT RARAHENERER FME  MO0ORSREEIHMETHEER
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited PRC, LLC Design and distribution of IC, China HKS$8,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
aARR(RINERAR hEERAA RARAUERERES 1E 8000000 TE M k&R AR
Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited ROC, LLC Market research, Taiwan 5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each 100%
BARERHERAA TERE FRAA R E Y 500000k EREE 0T 8 ENLERR
Solomon Systech (UK) Limited United Kingdom, LLC Design and distribution of C, United Kingdom 1 ordinary shares of GBP1 each 100%

ZE ARAA

R RAHERERES BE

IRERABIZENLRR

al) Limited  Annual Report 2018




18.

19.

Subsidiaries (continued) 18. MEBAT ()

Place of incorporation and

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation  Particulars of capital Interest held
iR AMEUEEREELL IEXEREELY kA KERR
WE3 Technology Company Limited HK, LLC Design, development & distribution of 32,380,000 ordinary shares of HK32,390,000 100%
BERBERAA BE ARLA handset solutions, HK 32,390,000 32,390,000 78 T8 & %
it BRRABFRES
BARE R
Sentron, Inc. Korea, LLC Application R&D, Korea 80,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each 5%
& ERAT ERRY 28 80000 EREES0ETNEBR
Solomon Systech (China Limited PRC, LLC Design and distribution of IC, China (JS$20,000,000 paid up capital 100%
#ARR(hE)ERAR hEBRAA RARAHENERES 18 20000000%TE&RER
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of EERB LRAVNARBIZHBRAT

the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

IBREARBFRNEREREAREREF
BEZERHNDE-ESRR/HINEMHE
RAZHBEEEHBRIUE -

Equity investment designated at fair value through other 19 ROFHEEFARMZERSH
comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments BERE THHERS
2018 2017
Uss$'000 US$'000
FER TEr
Equity investment designated at fair value BROVEEFAEMGEZE
through other comprehensive income KR RERE
Club debenture BES 839 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FLEMRERE  BREAK - 2,206

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

ARERRRERRBIUEEE BERE
THREMERZRATEEFAELMS

Mg o
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20. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

21.

2 HeRAeEFRMREMETHE

A
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$000
TER TErx
Cash at bank and in hand ROFRERE 13,395 18,547
Short-term bank deposits RERITER - 4,800
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEBYD 13,395 23,347

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”) amounted to US$4,532,000 (2017:
US$7,404,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposit are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBREHR FEBUAARBTARE])
AHEMR & KR 174 8 /4,532,000 T
(2017 : 7,404000% 7T) - AR A AT B &
ABREMEYR BREPBERENINE
BEGHMGE EERIINEEREK
Bl AEBREERBEREETHERS
MBRTHAARBLBEMES -

BOEFBESHRTERMERT Y
MERBRME - EHREBREROBR A1
AEEAAE RIAKENAERE
FRME  LREBOEEERFRAN X
ROFE - ROTEHRREERERFRR
EERUEORIT THEENTE

Inventories 2. &8
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000
TER FET
Finished goods X fm 3,569 2,806
Raw materials and work in progress JR M B % 75 8 39,147 25,656
42,716 28,462
Provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories BREEETENRE (10,062) (7,935)
32,654 20,527

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in cost of sales
amounted to US$63,661,000 (2017: US$49,409,000).

national) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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21. Inventories (continued)

Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories are as

21. E&8»
BEIRETENEENEDINOT

follows:

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

FEn FET

At 1 January ®m1A1RH 1,935 5,405
Scrap of inventories against provision FEWREMNREE (3,793) (924)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories BRENEETENRE 5,920 3,454
At 31 December W12A31H 10,062 7,935

22. Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits

2 EHHRREMEL® AARER

HE
2018 2017
Note US$'000 Us$'000
i FEx TErx
Trade receivables JE W 3 22,527 15,491
Trade receivables from related parties 7 B 77 FE MR 34 1,527 1,696
Impairment WEEE (140) -
Trade receivables — net WK — %5 23914 17,187
Deposits, prepayments and HERSC L 3¢
other receivables 4,692 3.810
Prepayments to related parties 70 77 B R 34 232 234
Trade and other JRE W5k I E o B U SR —
receivables — current portion 28,838 21,231
Prepayments and BRRRITE-FRD
deposits — non-current portion 525 180
29,363 21,411

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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22,

FEUBHRRM e

W

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits
(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's trade receivables from corporate customers
were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90 days. As at 31 December 2018, the
ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

22.

BEmREMEBERER BARR
HEAC)

M2018F 128318 AEBEHLERR Y
ERZEEREZ A30E0H - H20184F
12318 ERZFABZAHRNGHE
BEBHREBEOTOT

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
FExn TET
1-30 days 1-30H 9,622 6,468
31-60 days 31-60H 6,547 4,533
61-90 days 61-90H 4,522 3,428
91-180 days 91-180H 3,223 2,755
181-365 days 181-365 H - 3
23,914 17,187
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as EWFTREREEZSHNT
follows:
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
TZx FET
At beginning of year R E 1) - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS9 RMHKFRS 9 & & 140 -
At beginning (restated) and end of year RENES) LFR 140 -
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE2018F12R3NBLEERET S
MBEREERNFEIRO R E

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.
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22. Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits
(continued)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's
trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

2 BEHEFREAMELEZ AGRR
HEACY
BE2018F12B3MBLEERBEEFE
MERSENEIRMHRE®D
AR 851 7 £ B R OB 4 4 PR A R U 3R
EERE:

R2018512A31H

Expected credit Gross carrying Expected

loss rate amount credit losses
BHEEFER REE FEHEEEBR
% US$'000 US$'000
Baok FEx FExr

Past due fagil
Current XiBH 0.37 13,614 51
1-30 days 1-30 H 0.60 1,724 46
31-60 days 31-60 H 1.40 1,567 22
61-90 days 61-90 H 1.80 1,139 20
QOver 90 days HiHEI0H 2.76 10 1
24,054 140

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017F12ANHLFERBEES
SRt ER B3R E

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 that were
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as
follows:

RIEEE G ERFEI95  R2017F12 7
TR ER K HREEFREREDT

2017

US$'000

TErx

Neither past due nor impaired REBAREFTREAE 10,805
Less than 1 month past due @A DR E A 4,490
1 to 3 months past due #HI1-31E A 1,892
17,187

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large number of
diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors of the Company were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

ABHAEFTRECRUR S REZER
P8y & E DL

BMERREZEERRIRETERALASE
BERURSHEHZBIE, ENBHE
B ZHBNEPZEEERARELEEXR
Bl BURFAERDAZ2HE Y HE
BERRTRENASLBRERES
A ERIF395RAF R (B E
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NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
A BRI

23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23. BEABERUERAFEEHOMHE
HE
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
TER TErx
Non-current assets (RBEE
Call option over non-controlling interests JEE AR RE S R 467 788
Current assets RBEE
Marketable bonds NEEES 567 7,819
Marketable funds MEEE® 8,154 9,575
Listed i)
Equity securities = - 4,908
Fund ¢ 59 68
9,247 23,158
Changes in fair values of FVTPL are recorded in finance income — net in the BRERURBRATEBLLTESE
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 8). EBRRNEABEERTNEERAFER
i8) e
The Group's call option over non-controlling interests was valued at 31 December N5 E ) IF 1R R 2 R B T R 2018412
2018 by an independent, professionally qualified valuer. The fair values of RAIBH—NUBYUEEAGERGEEME
listed financial instruments are based on quoted market prices at the end of the IEE - FTHERIACATERER
reporting period. The fair values of unlisted financial instruments are determined BEMANMBERE -FLTEMIAN
by reference to the dealer's quote or input from reputable financial institutions. AFELEERARGENZ ZET

ANREIRIBENCREBEEHN -

24. Issued capital 2. BERITEF
2018 2017
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares US$'000 shares US$'000
K& E TER B th 8 B FET
Authorized: ETE
— Ordinary shares of ~SREENI0BT
HK$0.10 each EOR RN 5,000,000,000 64,433  5,000,000,000 64,433
Issued and fully paid: BETRHE:
At 1 January m1A1H 2,479,552,351 31,958  2,477,102,351 31,926
Exercise of share options (note) TEEREC 700,000 9 2,450,000 32
At 31 December »n12A31H 2,480,252,351 31,967  2,479,552,351 31,958
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the subscription rights attaching to 100,000 share Bfet - B E2018F 12431 H1EF/Z » 100,00017 5%
options and 600,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.309 and 1 K 600,00017 B AR 1 BT 75 1 32 5 HE 5 Bl 1237
HK$0.315 per share, respectively, resulting in the issue of 700,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 B (EER0.3098 7T % 2 HR0.3158 T HE7THE
each for total cash consideration, before expenses of US$28,000. SR EFT700,00008 G AR EE0. 105

T+ HBE EHIE BH F#328,000% T

national) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018



25. Equity compensation scheme

(a)

The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2013. The terms
of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions
of the Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The 2013
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 May 2013, being the date of adoption of such scheme
by the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall be entitled at any
time within 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make an offer for
the grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to provide the
participants (directors, employees, advisers, consultants, agents,
distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, service
providers, customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
etc., of any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying participant
concerned for a period of 21 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.

25 BREEDEMEHD

(a)

1% g

AR A R2013F5 7288 8178 K
RBFREERMN—BRES
(T2013% A # & 81 1) - 201388 i #
AEMGERREREDAANETE
#) 15 3 - 201388 fix # 5T 81 B 20135
5728 B (B0 A 22 7 A 3R 5% 4 2% 8
BB ZRA)REY REI0F-E
28 U R2013F5828R 21045
NELBRETAERSEE -

013BMEFEEELTARERS
BEXEEKEZEF BT HE
e KB 2HEE AEH.
ABBUER HER RBREHEE.
EF BEEH GELEAERE
HEVRSEBARAZEA RN ME
BAREE BREARARERRE
BANEmMBREARREEE-

RIBE2013BEREFERZLNOAE
BREETEMATERINRN A
B IAREBNEBRENEE
AARRE HE#TRAMNI0%

BHR2EEEIMI2ZEARERD
BhERECTE EHEIHEKRT
ERTERCERNBRTHRLD
ARNAY AFTRBBAARA
EBETRODM1%-

BRERZZABEF2 A HEGEK
EZeNEAEAANBRAMAA
HEER2EERM - RNERBRK
BE ABRABARARAXNER
1.007T °
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

164

(a)

25 BEEZEMER

The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) HEERH#EE &2
The subscription price of share option shall be determined by the Board E2013E R EFEBGXEET B
at its absolute discretion in accordance with the terms of the 2013 Share Ee AFBYEENIVERENR
Option Scheme. The subscription price in respect of any particular option EE TR ERERENZEGA
shall be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as BUTHEEE (a)kHOREEAR
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the HAEBMSHEESREBERMY K TE
date of grant; and (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated Rb)BRHEBEES T A BALEY
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five E*HAEBTHERRERAY EY
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. WrE -
The total number of share options available for issue upon exercise of all RARFERFKE B B IE20138 K
share options to be granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at BETE MEAERA KB B RE
the date of this annual report is 226,265,235, representing 9.1% of the TEB JFETHRODEE B
issued shares of the Company. The number of share options outstanding 226,265,2350% + 15 A& A B B 1T R D
as at 31 December 2018 was 21,760,000. f9.1% - M2018F 1283180 A& #
21,760,0000% 7 &k 48 AR 1 R AC TR
The following share options under the 2013 Share Option Scheme were FER2013EHR B E S RITEE
outstanding during the year: B MT:
2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
¥ BRE I 1 g
THRE A 1T (E 2R
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of year PR E ] 0.334 31,600,000 0.345 44,050,000
Granted during the year FHEEHT 0.254 2,400,000 0.370 2,400,000
Exercised during the year FANETE 0314 (700,000) 0.320 (2,450,000
Lapsed/forfeited during the year ~ F R D8,/ WE 0.331 (11,540,000) 0.383 (12,400,000
At end of year RER 0.327 21,760,000 0.334 31,600,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HK$0.34 (2017: HK$0.41) per ordinary
share.

During the year, movements in the number of share options outstanding
under the share option scheme and the related exercise prices are as
follows:

Solomon Systech (International) Limited  Annual Report 2018
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25 BEESEMAE
(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) FEEEHE (2

Number of share options (in thousand units)

BREHE (LT
Held on
31 December
2017 and
1 January
Exercise 2018 Lapsed/ Held on
price  R2017% Forfeited 31 December
pershare 128 31H Granted  Exercised during 2018
HKS R2018% during during theyear 20185
Grant date SRTEE  181A the year theyear FACHEH/ 128318 Exercise period
R AH BT EE FRCRE ERETE HE 55 Gkl
9 October 2014 0.395 950 - - (950) - 3 October 2016 to 28 September 2018
20145 10A9H 2016F 10 A3 220185 9A28H
30 March 2015 0.309 350 - (100) (250) - 1 April 2016 to 30 March 2018
2015%3A30H 2016F4718 22018637308
0.309 100 - - - 100 3 April 2017 to 29 March 2019
017F473R 22019437298
2 October 2015 0315 2,900 - (300) (2,600) - 3 October 2016 to 28 September 2018
2015F10A2H 2016F 10 A3 220185 9A28H
0.315 500 - (300) - 200 2 Qctober 2017 to 30 September 2019
201751028 220199 A30H
11 January 2016 0.369 2,500 - - (1,500) 1,000 2 April 2018 to 31 March 2020
2016F1A11H 2018F4 7282020434318
0.369 2,500 - - (1,500) 1,000 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2020
20191728 22020612431 H
0.369 2,500 - - - 2,500 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
019F4 1A Z20143A31H
0.369 2,500 - - - 2,500 2 January 2020 to 31 December 2021

20201 A28 22015124318

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)
(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

25.

BREEEME
(a) B BR &t &) ()

Number of share options (in thousand units)

BREHE AT
Held on
31 December

2017 and
1 January

Exercise 2018 Lapsed/ Held on

pice  R2017% Forfeited 31 December

pershare 128 31H Granted  Exercised during 2018

HK  R20185 during during theyear  FA2018%
Grant date SRTEE  181A the year theyear FAEH/ 125318 Exercise period
REAH B BEE FRERE FREFE HE =] TEH
30 September 2016 0.305 2,400 - - - 2,400 2 October 2017 to 30 September 2019
20165 9A 308 2017F10A28£2019F9A30H
0.305 6,000 - = (4,740) 1,260 2 April 2018 to 31 March 2020
2018F4728 2020637318
0.305 6,000 - - - 6,000 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
019F4 18 Z20143A318
9 October 2017 0370 2,400 - - - 2,400 2 October 2018 to 30 September 2020
2017510498 201810 A28 £202059A30H
9 October 2018 0.254 - 2,400 - - 2,400 2 October 2019 to 30 September 2021
201810 A 98 201910 A28 £2021%F9A30H

Total 31,600 2,400 (700) (11,540) 21,760

@

At the end of the reporting period, the total number of share options
which are exercisable under the scheme is 7,360,000 (2017: 7,200,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 21,760,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme during the year. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 21,760,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
US$290,000 (before issue expenses).

national) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

REEHR REBREFEATEORE
i 1 #4221 /& 7,360,000 (2017 : 7,200,000) °

RBEWMR  AREREZERE B H
AR 171£21,760,00017 & B 4& - REBE A 2 A
RBEEARE 2BTERTERBRES
B33 1721,760,000 K A &) & & Ik & 88 b
AN290,000€ T (B 1T E A AT



25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(a)

(b)

25 BFELIEHHAD G

The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EBBR#ER ()
The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model to value the share KAGFERA_BITIEERNAEDR
options granted. The key parameters used in the Model and the R B R N2018 2017 F A 2
corresponding fair values of the share options granted during 2018 and EHERENATERERIEER
2017 are listed below: MEZLEHEDT:
2018 2017
Date of grant 9 October 9 October
REBEH 1049H 10H9H
Number of share options granted ERLERESA
(in thousand units) (A FALEH) 2,400 2,400
Total share option value BEheEsm
— HK$'000 -FET 176 276
— US$'000 equivalent -TErxEE 21 36
Share price at date of grant (HK$) EEABHREET 0.250 0.370
Exercise price (HKS) TEEGET) 0.254 0.370
Expected life of options (years) BRENTEERHA(F) 3 3
Annualized volatility FERK IR 43.8% 48.0%
Risk free interest rate 2 8 & F) & 2.368% 1.23%
Dividend payout rate P _ _
The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the fair values THIERAZARGBERABR
of European share options. The fair values calculated are inherently BOATE-FELENRFERR
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations EREMEXNESRIMAEES
of the Model used. The value of a share option varies with different mEBUERIAEE - BERENEE
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in variables so CHEXLIBHREANTAEHM
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of a share WE-FMEANE UMW ERBEA
option. REeHEREATENEEEANE
AE 2o
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously EEDERBERBHIERBEY
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily closing FEARMETENRT >N 2R
share prices over the last few years. MEEERMIBEZNEL R
The Share Grant (b) EiRMEE

During the year, the Company has awarded 1,902,000 (2017: 2,212,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“Awarded
Shares”) conditionally to the chief executive officer (the “Beneficiary”).
The Awarded shares are subject to the Group's financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2018, of which (i) 951,000 shares will be vested
after the close of business on 30 March 2019 and (ii) 951,000 shares
will be vested after the close of business on 31 December 2019. In the
absence of an award share scheme and trustee upon successful vesting
of the Awarded Shares, and subject to the Listing Rules, the Beneficiary
shall instruct an agent or a broker to purchase the Awarded Shares
directly from the market, with the cash reserve made available by the
Company.

FR AN E K& R F1,902,000
(2017 : 2,212,000) B¢ A& 2 7] & Bk Al &
0108 THEBR(BERKRHD] T
BHEHIXHEAD BERGIUR
RAEE2018F12A3NB MK %
By HP(i)R2019F38308 %
2 6 R 1% 1% 83 B 951,000 B AR 17 K (ii)
R2019ENANB L ¥ EREEE
951,000 % i 17 57 8 - B B 19 A AK
DERBEREWNAERNMEBHAERT
TANBERAT IR LETRAUARF
T SHABESRBAZELU
MADRIRENREHEBEATSE
BEEERERD -

PR 018 EER
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26.

21.

168

EHBHERRN e

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 70 of the financial statements.

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability is recognized using liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.

The following are the deferred tax liability recognized and movements thereon:

26.

21.

fi o8
AERBRFERUMEFEZ#BELEDHF
EHERBERRENBERERAEHER -
BEFBRRAR

EEBAMSREENRIAZRAAEE
NMEREERABENRARRSMBR
KRB RAEAECANEREZEFEH
B

BEFMSHBEZRRARESGN T

Recognition of
intangible assets

BREVEE

US$'000

TErx

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) U 8 — 1 B 8 & =] (Fff 5£16) 409
Credited to profit or loss FFABEER (43)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 M20179€12 A31H R2018F1 A1H 366
Credited to profit or loss FFABEER (53)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31H 313

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of US$90,627,000 (2017: US$78,777,000), subject to the agreement by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses arising in Mainland China of
US$7,387,000 (2017: US$3,640,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to unpredictability of
future taxable profit streams.
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R2018F12A31H  AEBEEBBELN
& R % 78 /&5 18 /590,627,000 3% 7t (2017 -
787771000% ) (BERBEABBRRAE)
ZERMBREVERDRAEEREEE
BEMNAAHRRERBAMNE XAEE
NEEFBEAEELENABRRABESE
7,387,000 7T (2017 : 3,640,000% 7T) (& &
HABBKERE) ZEHBEEEER
AERNER TREEHEEEENRA
() 5K SR PE ER B0 R o BB R A BRI R 2R B
RBAERR AR ERZEEEER
ERERIBEE -



28.

29.

Trade and other payables 28. BB HMEMGR
2018 2017
US$000 US$'000
TER FTEx
Trade payables JE 3R 18,697 15,636
Accrued expenses and other payables FERT B X I E At B 3% 6,462 7,159
Provision for sales rebates Bl H1 # 1 - 537
Refund liabilities BREaE 1,753 -
26,912 23,332

At 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice
dates is as follows:

R2018F 128318 BENRUEZHHY
FEROMWT

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

TER TEx

1-30 days 1-30H 6,293 6,742
31-60 days 31-60H 5,072 4,994
61-90 days 61-90H 5,538 3,464
Over 90 days R0 A 1,794 436
18,697 15,636

Trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
three months.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a mortgage bank loan of US$22,000 (2017:
US$116,000) in connection with the office property in Hsinchu, Taiwan. The bank
borrowing matures by 14 January 2019 and bears an interest rate of long-term
funding determined by the Council of Economic Planning and Development of
Taiwan Government plus 0.41% (2017: 0.41%).

The carrying amount of the bank borrowing approximated its fair value as it was
subject to a floating rate and is wholly denominated in NTD.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a current bank loan of US$176,000 (2017:
US$183,000) in connection with a Korean subsidiary. The bank borrowing
matures by 5 July 2019 and bears an interest rate of 1.25% (2017: 1.25%) per
annum. The carrying amount approximated its fair value, due to its short-term
maturity and was denominated in KRW.

ENFEEBENRARE B —KRNIE
AREE-

BITHBER
R2018F12A318 A& BE —HAE
AT IR E B 1248 B 3022,000 3 7T (2017
1M6,000% L) ZBRITERINHA A
2019F1A14B EXFXDRESER
RBOBRREEERZRZBEMAINT RS
& BB EM041% (2017 : 0.41%) ©

FAARZTFHNEL2MAGK 2] |7
ERMEEERQFERET-

R2018F12A310  AKEE -—HRHIR
7 & 176,000 7T (2017 : 183,000% 7T) &
BRERTAR - ZBARTERIBAA
20197 A5H - B F FI % 51.25%(2017
125%) -HREMBRE REBEEAQY
BERE WIABTIIE-

SFIRE 2018 EEH



NOTES TO THE CONS\OUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continues)
A BRI

30. Banking facilities 30. RITEH
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group had no unused banking N2018FE12 8318 R2017E128318 » K
facilities. SEWSERANEBRITEESR -
31. Note to the consolidated cash flow statement 3. REBaRERME
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities MEIBHELEZEEE®R
Borrowings
B
US$'000
TEx
As at 1 January 2017 M2017%F1 /818 193
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREL (67)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) o B8 — FEI P B8 2 &) (T 3% 16) 174
Foreign exchange realignment b 5 3 & 1
As at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 M2017F12A31H k20181 A1 H 299
Changes from financing cash flows MERSTEL (101)
As at 31 December 2018 R20185612 A31H 198
32. Commitments 32. &if
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEKIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred at end of the REEBRR ERTENENKRD
reporting period is as follows: AMERBAZINHENT
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000
TER TErx
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 14 309
(b) Operating lease commitments — the Group as lessee () BEHRRAR-FTREHEAHEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties, machinery and motor FEBRELEHETHBERET
vehicles under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are WMOAME BERAE-WEHRE
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 4 years. Leases for machinery and FHEEFN 1245 - W M5
motor vehicles are negotiated for terms ranging from 3 to 4 years. As at ENHEFHLCERN TFIEL4F -
31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease payments R2018F12A31B A EERE T A
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HEgE2HERREEHEHSLET
T
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
TER TErx
Within one year —FR 1,815 1,061
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZRF
(BEEREMF) 2,002 296
3,817 1,357
Aside from the aforesaid, there was no other material capital commitment BRLABHRBEENBEEMEX
or contingent liability. ERERELIAREE
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33.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

2018
Financial assets

3. &eMIARFEER
BN ERTARNBRSARAEDT :

2018
THEE

Financial assets

at fair value through
profit or loss
BRERARB
ATEENSREE
Financial assets
Mandatory at fair value
classified as through other Financial
such upon initial Held for  comprehensive assets at
recognition trading income  amortised cost Total
BATEE
FTAHM  REHEAA
DERAK 2HEEEH HEMN
BHLE EFEE tREE tREE @t
Uss'000 Us$'000 Uss'000 Us$'000 Uss'000
TER TR xR TR TER
Equity investment designated at fairvalee 3% A L EEE AEH
through other comprehensive income 2EBENRERE = = 839 = 839
Financial assets included in trade and U R T At B M 3R
other receivables NS BEE - - = 24,951 20,951
Financial assets at fair value through BREZARBAT
profit or loss BENEREE 47 8,780 - - 9247
Pledged bank deposit BERHRTER - - - 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEED - - - 13,395 13,395
467 8780 839 38,476 48562
Financial liabilities THMARE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
786 B A
STER
cWEas
US$'000
TEx
Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables ENZMEMEMNRANSRAR 23,003
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITAFBEER 198
23,201

ASEREST
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33. Financial instruments by category (continued)

3. eEMIARBWAN

2017 2017
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss
BRERNRE
ATEENEREE
Mandatory
classified as
such upon initial Held for Loansand  Available-for-sale
recognition trading receivables  financial assets Total
NEERE B e
B R HEEE REYHK CREE @it
US$000 US$000 US§000 US$000 US§000
TET FET TET FET TET
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - - - 2,206 2206
Financial assets included in trade and B U A0 I At B R A
other receivables NeREE - - 19918 - 19918
Financial assets at fair value through BREXARBAF
profit or loss EEMERMEE 788 2310 - - 23158
Pledged bank deposit BERBNRTER - - 130 - 130
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReFED - - 23347 - 23347
88 22,310 433% 2,206 68,759
Financial liabilities ERERE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost
R KA
FEH
TREBE
US$'000
FTER

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

ENFEECENTANERAE
RITABER

19,423
299

19,722
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34. Related parties transactions

(@)  China Electronics Corporation (“CEC"), a state-owned information
technology conglomerate under the administration of the central
government of the PRC, through its wholly owned subsidiary Huada
Semciconductor Co. Ltd, owns approximately 28.5% of the issued shares
of the Company and is thus a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Transactions between the Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC
are regarded as transactions with related parties.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

34.

MBAXR

(a)

TRETEEEXRSEARAAR
ERREBRTEPRBFEEMNE
FETEMRMEXEE BAE
PEMBRAEARLERERRAA
BENBEDARNE ZETRM Ty
AREZERRR - A5 B HECECH
BARAINEREANR S EKHE G
RS

WTRGRBBT RS

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Sales: HER:
Subsidiaries of CEC CECRIBT B 2 7) 14,464 7,797
Purchases: g
Subsidiaries of CEC CECRIBT B 2 7) 372 336

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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34. Related parties transactions (continued) 4. ABABXHR =
The sales and purchases made with the subsidiaries of CEC were made HCECHMB AR ZHERKB L
according to prices and conditions offered to the Group's customers; and LEREERNEFPREMNER KIE
the transactions with related parties normally have an average term of HmEL BEBAZRS — BRI
three months. BAREE -
The following were year-end balances arising from sales/purchases: REE RKEERNFRESR -
2018 2017
Note Uss$'000 US$'000
Bt & TEx FET
Trade receivables: FEU K 22
Subsidiaries of CEC CECEY Mt B 2 A 1,527 1,696
Prepayments: B 22
Subsidiaries of CEC CECEY Mt B 2 A 232 234
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: b)) AEBEIZEBAENRMH:
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$000
FER TErx
Short term employee benefits EHEBSEF 453 452
Post-employment benefits BE R 2 18 7 20 20
Share-based payment expenses P& # 7 2 62 252
Total compensation paid to key management ENFEERAEZ
personnel BN 2z 535 724
Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are disclosed in note RARREEEEEZHERT B R
10 to the financial statements. KU EI10HE -
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35. Statement of financial position and reserves of the company

Statement of financial position

3. FLFMERARRER
(a) BBRAE

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET *RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARHEE 18,081 19,201
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables JE WUER R KL fth JE LK 55 130
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B B A B 3R 71,317 56,154
Financial assets at fair value through BBEBZURKRAF
profit or loss EEMNTBEE 8,780 22,370
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEED 388 2,581
Total current assets mEEEEET 80,540 81,235
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE B B A Bl 3% 24 241
Accrued expenses and other payables JE =T B S N H b JE ST X 221 186
Tax payable JRE 151 B 3K = 89
Total current liabilities mEAEET 462 516
EQUITY 5
Equity attributable to owners of ENFEZEEA
the Company PE1h R &
Issued capital BEITRA 31,967 31,958
Reserves & 1 66,192 67,962
Total equity R 98,159 99,920

SFIRE 2018 EEH
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35. Statement of financial position and reserves of the company 35.
(continued)

(b) Reserves (b) @&

FRFIMBERRER @R

Equity
compensation

al) Limited  Annual Report 2018

Share reserve  Accumulated
premium N losses Total
B 14 % B BB RitE#B @st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FER TEx TEx
At 1 January 2017 M2017F1A1H 109,014 17,323 (26,348) 99,989
Loss for the year FRNEE - - (32,466) (32,466)
Total comprehensive loss *HEHEBEAS - - (32,466) (32,466)
Equity-settled share option arrangements % 7 4 %5 45 B - 369 - 369
Exercise of share options 171 B AR 70 - - 70
At 31 December 2017 #2017 12 831 H 109,084 17,692 (58,814) 67,962
At 1 January 2018 MN2018F1A1H 109,084 17,692 (58,814) 67,962
Loss for the year FREE - - (1,801) (1,801)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBERAT - - (1,801) (1,801)
Equity-settled share option arrangements % 7 4 %5 35 B - 12 - 12
Exercise of share options 1T R R 19 = = 19
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12 A31H 109,103 17,704 (60,615) 66,192
36. Approval of consolidated financial statements 36. REMBBERER
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors KR AUBRERENR2019F3 513K E
on 13 March 2019. e




FIVE-YEAR
hLFHBRE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
USSmillion FE £ T

Sales HE 98.1 825 68.4 709 60.1
Gross profit E 28.2 29.3 235 232 208
Net loss EiEFH8 (13.8) (10.3) (6.9) (6.4) (3.0)
Assets and liabilities EERAE

— Total assets - BEE 107.0 116.2 115.6 123.4 1301

— Total liabilities -BaE 28.0 24.4 146 14.9 14.9

— Shareholders’ funds -BRRE= 79.0 918 101.0 108.5 115.3

US cents 3=l

Loss per share k& E

— Basic ! — B K0 (0.55) (0.41) (0.28) (0.26) (0.12)

— Diluted @ — s (0.55) (0.41) (0.28) (0.26) (0.12)
Dividends per share % I B = - — _ _
Net asset per share ! BFREEFEN 3.19 3.70 4.08 4.39 4.68

(i) The basic loss and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,462,430,618, 2,469,461,802, 2,477,102,351, 2,478,135,913 and 2,480,028,242, ordinary shares in issue
during each of the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

BREFEERBREEFERDFIREEZ2014% - 20155 « 20169 - 20174F K 2018F 12 A 31 A 1F F & & F 89 £ %77 Z 8 R I #E F 19 £(2,462,430,618/% ~
2,469,461,802f% + 2,477,102,351 % ~ 2,478,135,913 % [ 2,480,028,242 g 51 & »

(ii) For 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, the diluted loss per share information is based on 2,462,430,618, 2,469,461,802, 2,477,102,351, 2,478,135,913 and 2,480,028,242 ordinary shares
respectively, which are the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all dilutive/potential share options outstanding during the year.

R20144F ~ 20155 ~ 2016  2017F k20184 - £ K £ 6 5 18 49 & # 7 Il 122,462,430,618 /% ~ 2,469,461,602/% ~ 2,477,102,351 K ~ 2,478,135,913/% % 2,480,028,242
REBRAE MERBEERIRERRFAFEH AR TRERECFBENHERE FTMEFIEBRAE
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

EE M=

2013 Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme approved by shareholders for adoption at the annual general meeting held on
28 May 2013

AMEPD Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

AMOLED Active Matrix Organic Light Emitting Diode

BJ-LED Beijing LED Energy Management Technology Co. Ltd**., a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability

Board Board of Directors

BVI The British Virgin Islands

Cayman Islands Companies Law

Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands

CEACI

CEAC International Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CECI, and a connected person of the Company

CEC

China Electronics Corporation, a state-owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC, is a substantial shareholder of the Company
through its interests in Huada

CECI

I E BB E B RECA R A F) (CECI Technology Co., Ltd.**), a company established in the
PRC and an indirect subsidiary of the CEC, and a connected person of the Company

China

Mainland China, for the purpose of this report, excludes Hong Kong and Macau Special Administrative
Regions of the PRC and Taiwan

Code Provision(s)

Code provision(s) in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

C0S0 Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission is a private sector initiative that
has issued internationally recognized internal control frameworks

CNY Chinese Yuan, Renminbi

Company Solomon Systech (International) Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Director(s) The director(s) of the Company

HES bR E RN KEFHBR A 7] (Beijing Huada Empyrean Software Co., Ltd.**), a company
established in the PRC, and a connected person of the Company

Huada Huada Semiconductors Co.Ltd., a PRC company with limited liability to consolidate all IC businesses
under CEC group. It is a substantial shareholder of the Company

ESL Electronic Shelf Label

FHD Full High Definition, a display resolution standard of 1920 x 1080 pixels

FHD+ A display resolution standard of 2220 x 1080 pixels, which is more than the normal FHD 1080p

FVTPL Fair value through profit or loss

FWVGA Full Wide Video Graphics Array, a display resolution standard of 854 x 480 pixels

Group The Company and its subsidiaries

HD High Definition, a display resolution standard of 1280 x 720 pixels

HK$/HKD Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

HKAS

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

HKFRS

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, or collectively for HKAS and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards
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201388 % 51 2

R20134F5A28A BT Z MR AF ARG L EUS BRI IR A ) B8 i =t 8

AMEPD TEEREEKET

AMOLED THEEARER R

BJ-LED TRERaMSERNEARETLR RABEEFMR L 2ERDH

S Exg

BVI RBREZES

HEMBERAE HEBHSARENBIFERI KHRE RIEL

CEACI FEEFRMBERARAR REATMKLZAERAR  RCECIW 2 &N B R A

FEEF,CEC FEEFEEEESEEARAA — REEFERTEYRABENEENREEFE
ERMEEEE BBEHNERANRZRAAAAIZEERR

CECI RYFERABREEREAERAR  RPBEIMKIcERELLA AHEEFE
B EENERAR

F B REARANE RABRSEME TRERPEEBRAMBINTRERAE

<F Al R XX E AR B R4 R 2 B e <P Al H) PRI X

C0s0 Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission & — 18 . & 5+ & » & 3%
FEBEBRRUNNBEERE
BT AR

VNN Solomon Systech (International) Limited * — XK YA HEHEMNBER QA HRERN B
RFEREM
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DEFlNlTlQNS AND GLOSSARY contnceg
EE A=

IC Integrated Circuit

IGZ0 A semiconductor material consisting of indium (In), gallium (Ga), zinc (Zn) and oxygen (0)

IP Intellectual Property

JPY Japanese Yen

KRW Korean Won

LCD Liquid Crystal Display

Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

LTPS Low Temperature Polysilicon, a technology for the manufacturing of TFT-LCD

LLC Limited liabilities company

MIPI Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

NTD New Taiwan dollars

OLED Organic Light Emitting Diode

Panda-FPD Nanjing CEC Panda Flat Panel Display Technology Co., Ltd.**, a company established in the PRC with
limited liability, is a subsidiary of Nanjing Huadong Electronics Information & Technology Co., Ltd.**

Panda-LCD Nanjing CEC Panda LCD Technology Co., Ltd.**, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability, is an associate of CEC

PMOLED Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting Diode

POLED Plastic Organic Light Emitting Diode

PRC The People’s Republic of China for the purpose of this report, excluded Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administration Regions of the PRC and Taiwan

R&D Product design, development and engineering

ROC The Republic of China

S&D Selling and Distribution

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance

SGD Singapore dollars

Singapore The Republic of Singapore

SSL Solomon Systech Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is the major
wholly-owned operating subsidiary of the Company

the Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

TDDI Touch and Display Driver Integration

TFT Thin Film Transistor

UHD Ultra high definition is a display resolution standard of 3840 x 2160 pixels (8.3 megapixels; 4K)

UK United Kingdom

USA United States of America

US$/USD US dollars

*x

for identification purpose only
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Financial Calendar
Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
13 March 2019

Share Listing
Listing Venue and Date

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,480,252,351 (as at 31 December 2018)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

P.0. Box 10008, Willow House

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1001

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Center

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor
Ernst & Young
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Solicitors
Reed Smith Richards Butler

Board Members

Executive Directors

Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lo Wai Ming

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Rongxin (Chairman)

Dr. Li Jun

Mr. Ma Yuchuan (appointed on 14 March 2018)
Mr. Zhao Guiwu (resigned on 14 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph

Authorized Representatives
Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi
Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant

Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas FCCA, ACPA, FCA

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations

Ms. Jessica Lee

Senior Corporate Communications Manager
Tel: (852) 2207 1672

Email: communication@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office

6/F., No.3 Science Park East Avenue
Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111

Fax: (852) 2267 0800

Website

www.solomon-systech.com
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This 2018 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has been posted on
the Company's website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports, summary financial reports (where
applicable), interim reports, summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of
meeting, listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company's website and
for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the Annual Report posted on the
Company’s website will promptly upon request be sent by post the Annual Report in
printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of receipt of the
Company'’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report or change their choice
of means of receipt of the Corporate Communications by sending reasonable notice in
writing to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or by sending
an email to solomon2878-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Solomon Systech (International) Limited

6/F., No.3 Science Park East Avenue BEHADH

Hong Kong Science Park EERER

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong R KER3IH6E

Tel: (852) 2207 1111 Fax: (852) 2267 0800 E5E 1 (852)2207 1111 {EE : (852) 2267 0800
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